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VISION

“TO BE MARKET LEADERS IN WOOLLEN/BLENDED FABRICS, 

BLANKETS & SHAWLS, BUILDING COMPANY IMAGE THROUGH 

INNOVATION AND COMPETITIVENESS, ENSURING SATISFACTION TO 

CUSTOMERS' AND STAKEHOLDERS AND TO FULFILL SOCIAL 

OBLIGATIONS.”

MISSION STATEMENT

“LEAD PRODUCER OF QUALITY WOOLLEN/BLENDED FABRICS, 

BLANKETS & SHAWLS, WE SHALL BUILD ON OUR CORE 

COMPETENCIES AND ACHIEVE EXCELLENCE IN PERFORMANCE. WE 

AIM AT EXCEEDING EXPECTATIONS OF ALL STAKEHOLDERS. WE 

TARGET TO ACHIEVE TECHNOLOGICAL ADVANCEMENTS TO 

INCULCATE THE MOST EFFICIENT, ETHICAL AND TIME TESTED 

BUSINESS PRACTICES IN OUR MANAGEMENT.

WE SHALL STRIVE TO INNOVATE AND INTRODUCE ALTERNATE USES 

OF PRODUCTS TO BROADEN OUR CUSTOMER BASE TO HELP 

STRENGTHEN THE PHYSICAL INFRASTRUCTURE OF THE COUNTRY.”     
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

th
NOTICE is hereby given that the 49  Annual General Meeting of 
the Shareholders of Bannu Woollen Mills Limited will be held at 
the registered office of the Company at Habibabad, Kohat on 

stSaturday the 31  October 2009 at 10:45 A.M. to transact the 
following business.

1. To confirm the minutes of the Extra Ordinary General 
Meeting held on September 2, 2009.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial 
thStatements of the Company for the year ended 30  June 

2009 together with the directors' and auditors' reports 
thereon.

th3. To appoint auditors for the year to ending on 30  June 2010 
and to fix their remuneration.

4. To consider any other business with the permission of the 
Chair.

        By order of the Board

Kohat  AMIN-UR-RASHEED
th

Dated: 9  October 2009           Company Secretary
                & 

 General Manager Corporate Affairs



5 Bannu Woollen Mills Limited

Annual Report 2009

NOTES:

BOOK CLOSURE:

1. The Share transfer books of the Company shall remain closed 
rd th

from 23  October 2009 to 30  October 2009 (both days 
inclusive). The shares received in the Company's Registrar 
office i.e. Management & Registration Services (Pvt) Limited, 
Business Executive Centre, F-17/3, Block 8, Clifton, Karachi 

nd
before close of business hours on 22  October 2009 will be 
considered in order for registration in the name of the 
transferees.

CHANGE IN ADDRESSES AND CONSOLIDATION OF FOLIOS:

2. Members of the Company are requested to immediately notify 
the change of address, if any, and ask for consolidation of their folio nos. 

PARTICIPATION IN ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

3. Any member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting shall be entitled 
to appoint any other person as his/her proxy to attend and vote in 
respect of him/her and the proxy instrument shall be received by the 
Company not later than 48 hours before the meeting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CDC ACCOUNT HOLDERS:

4. CDC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned 
guidelines as laid down in Circular 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by 
the Securities and Exchange commission of Pakistan;

a. For attending the meeting:

i. In case of account holder of CDC their registration details are uploaded 
as per the regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his 
original National Identity Card (N.I.C.) or Original Passport at the time of 
attending the Meeting.
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ii. In case of corporate entity the Board of Directors' Resolution/Power of 
Attorney with certified specimen signature of the nominee shall be 
produced at the time of the meeting.

b. For appointing proxies:

i. In case of individuals account holder of CDC registration details are 
uploaded as per the regulations shall submit the proxy form as per the 
above requirements along with attested copies of N.I.C. or the 
Passport of the beneficial owner shall be furnished with proxy form.

ii. The proxy shall produce his original N.I.C. or original Passport at the 
time of the meeting.

Iii. In case of corporate entity the Board of Directors' Resolution/Power of 
Attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted along with 
proxy form to the company. 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

th
Your Directors are pleased to welcome you on 49  Annual General Meeting 

th
of the company and place before you the Balance Sheet as on 30  June, 

th
2009 alongwith Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 30  June, 2009 
with auditors' report on these financial statements for your approval. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR, 2009:

We are pleased to report that your Company has earned net profit of              
Rs. 9.709 million after loss of associated companies & impairment loss on 
investments and before taxation. The actual profit before these adjustments 

thfor year ended 30  June, 2009 amounts to Rs. 39.601 million as compared 
to profit of Rs. 44.273 million of year 2008.

The gross sales of the Company were higher at Rs. 391.280 million (2008:      
Rs. 331.889 million) . The cost of sales amounted to Rs. 295.269 million 
(2008: Rs. 241.378 million).

Operating profit after finance cost for the year under report was Rs. 39.601 
million (2008: Rs. 44.273 million). However decrease during the purchases 
of imported wool made in 2008, the cost of goods manufactured decreases 
by 6.45% although other element of costwages, electricity, power & fuel 
increased by Rs. 19.119 million during the year under report i.e. 2009.

The best efforts of senior management of the Company, overall control and 
reduction in raw material cost by changing the blend and by introducing the 
new products. There was increase in financial cost by 24.36% as compared 
to last year; the fact of this increase is that the KIBOR plus spread has 
increased 42%. The gross profit for the year under review i.e. 2009 is 24.54% 
of net sales (2008  gross profit was 27.27% of net sales). 

FINANCIAL RESULTS

thFinancial results for the year ended 30  June, 2009 as compared to the year 
thended 30  June, 2008 are summarized as under:
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Year ended Year ended
th th30  June 2009 30  June 2008
(Rs.  Million) (Rs. Million)

Sales-Net 391.280 331.889
Less: Cost of Sales 295.269 241.378

Gross Profit 96.011 90.511
Administrative & Selling Expenses 49.189 40.011
Other Operating Expenses 4.297 4.627

53.486 44.638
42.525 45.873

Other Operating Income 2.774 2.982
Operating Profit 45.299 48.855
Finance Cost 5.698 4.582

39.601 44.273
Share of Loss of Associated Companies-Net (14.351) (0.604)
Impairment Loss on Investments in 
Associated Companies (15.541) 0

(29.892) (.604)
Profit Before Taxation 9.709 43.669
Taxation (Net) 14.976 16.211
(Loss)/Profit After Taxation (5.267) 27.458
(Loss)/Earning Per Share Rs. (0.69) Rs. 3.61

OPERATING PERFORMANCE: 

With the installed capacity of 3,346 woollen spindles and 46 shuttless looms 
(2008, capacity was 2,898 spindles and 46 shuttless looms), the Company 
has produced 1,610,280 Kgs of 5 Nm count yarn and 1,521,667 meter cloth 
based on 30 picks in year 2009 as compared to 1,378,895 Kgs of 5 Nm count 
yarn and 1,797,135 meters cloth based on 30 picks for the year ended 30 
June, 2008. Production efficiency has receded as compared to year 2008 on 
account of Law & Order situation (war between local Taliban and Pak Army) 
and continuous power decline.

INVESTMENT IN PLANT AND MACHINERY:

We are pleased to inform you that your directors had invested Rs. 37.695 
million in order to improve quality and quantity of the Mills production 
during the year under repot. We are also planning to invest further Rs. 
35.000 million in plant & machinery during the year 2009-2010.



 

 

9 Bannu Woollen Mills Limited

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As required under the Code of Corporate Governance the Directors are 
pleased to confirm that:

1. The financial statements, prepared by the management of Bannu 
Woollen Mills Ltd present fairly its state of affairs, the results of its 
operations, cash flows and changes in equity. 

2. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied for 
the year ended 30-06-2009 and accounting estimates are based on 
reasonable and prudent judgment.

3. Proper books of account of Bannu Woollen Mills Limited have been 
maintained.

4. International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, 
have been followed in the preparation of the financial statements.

5. The system of internal controls is sound in design and has been 
effectively implemented and monitored.

6. There are no doubts upon Bannu Woollen Mills Limited's ability to 
continue as a going Concern.

7. There has been no material departure from the best practices of 
corporate governance, as detailed in the listing regulations.

8. There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies 
th

and charges which are outstanding as at 30  June 2009, except for 
those disclosed in the financial statements.

9. The pattern of shareholding and additional information regarding 
pattern of shareholding is included in this annual report.

10. No trades in the shares of Bannu Woollen Mills Limited were 
carried-out by the Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and 

th
their spouses and minor children during the year ended 30  June 
2009.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE BEST PRACTICES ON 
TRANSFER PRICING

The Company is compliant with the best practices of transfer pricing as 
contained in the listing regulation No. 37 of The Karachi Stock Exchange (G) 
Limited.

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE
thThe new Board of Directors elected on 26  March 2008 in compliance with 

the Code of Corporate Governance has established a Board Audit 
Committee.

1. Lt. Gen. (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak Chairman
2. Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak Member
3. Mr. Mushtaq Ahmad Khan, FCA Member

Annual Report 2009
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Board Audit Committee was established by the Board in its meeting held on 
th

8  April 2008, to assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities for 
corporate governance, financial reporting and corporate control. The Board 
Committee consists of three members including the Chairman of the 
Committee. Majority of the members of the committee are non-executive 
directors.

The Board Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing quarterly reports of 
the Company's financial results, budgets and its audited financial 
statements and other systems of management controls. The Committee 
reviews the procedures for ensuring their independence with respect to the 
services performed for the Company and to make recommendations to the 
Board of Directors regarding working of the Company.

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE OF EACH DIRECTOR       

    Number
Total number of Board meetings 
Held during the year under review 4

Attendance of each Director

Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak 4
Lt. Gen. (Retd). Ali Kuli Khan Khattak 3
Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak 3
Mr. Muhammad Azhar Khan 3
Mr. Mushtaq Ahmad Khan FCA 4
Mrs. Zeb Gohar Ayub 3
Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmad 3
Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak 1
Mr. Manzoor Ahmad Sheikh (NIT) 4
Mr. Sher Ali Khan (SLIC) 4

Leave of absence was granted to directors who could not attend the board 
meetings due to their busy schedule and other appointments.

The Board is pleased to report further that Bannu Woollen Mills Limited is 
compliant with the provisions of best practices of Code of Corporate 

thGovernance as on 30  June 2009.

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA (SIX YEARS SUMMARY)
Key operating and financial data of last six years is enclosed.



11 Bannu Woollen Mills Limited

Annual Report 2009

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

th
The statement of pattern of shareholding of the company as on 30  June 
2009 is enclosed. This statement is prepared in accordance with the Code of 
Corporate Governance and the provisions of Companies Ordinance 1984 
read with Companies (Amendment) Ordinance 2002.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors has recommended not to pay any dividend keeping in 
view the pressing requirements of financial resources.

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

The Company's auditors M/s Hameed Chaudhri & Co., Chartered 
Accountants, H. M. House, 7  Bank Square, Lahore retire and offer 
themselves for reappointment. The Board of Directors of the Company as 
recommended by the Audit committee has decided that the retiring auditor 
be re-appointed.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We would like to place on record our strong appreciation for the efforts of the 
Senior Executives, officers and other staff members and workers for their 
hard work, cooperation and sincerity to the Company in achieving best 
possible results.

For & on behalf of Board of Directors 

 RAZA KULI KHAN KHATTAK
Dated: 08 October, 2009                           Chairman



(Rupees in Million)

PARTICULARS 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

SALES (Net) 391.280
       

319.692
        

284.422
   

278.247
       

127.335
     

227.093
        

GROSS PROFIT 96.011
         

78.314
          

74.056
     

75.214
         

20.127
       

38.763
          

OPERATING PROFIT 45.299
         

48.855
          

45.584
     

50.322
         

4.987
         

17.690
          

PROFIT /(LOSS)

BEFORE TAXATION 9.709

           

43.669

          

41.698

     

38.193

         

1.649

         

15.138

          

PROVISION FOR TAXATION 14.976

         

16.211

          

15.035

     

21.199

         

0.630

         

4.848

            

PROFIT /(LOSS)

AFTER TAXATION (5.267)

          

27.458

          

26.663

     

16.994

         

1.018

         

10.290

          

CASH DIVIDEND -

               

-

                

50% -

               

-

             

-

                

EARNING (LOSS) PER SHARE (0.69)

            

3.61

              

5.26

         

3.35

             

0.20

           

2.30

              

BREAK UP VALUE PER SHARE 41.09

           

41.25

            

55.62

       

49.04

           

38.33

         

37.20

            

TOTAL ASSETS 801.915

       

713.499

        

668.981

   

619.121

       

684.766

     

718.490

        

CURRENT LIABILITIES 165.464

       

88.445

          

73.353

     

54.332

         

147.617

     

205.201

        

636.451

       

625.054

        

595.628

   

564.789

       

537.149

     

513.289

        

REPRESENTED BY:

SHARE CAPITAL 416.137

       

419.627

        

390.440

   

362.377

       

342.802

     

315.058

        

RESERVES 137.400

       

137.400

        

137.400

   

137.400

       

137.400

     

137.400

        

EQUITY 553.537

       

557.027

        

527.840

   

499.777

       

480.202

     

452.458

        

DEFERRED LIABILITIES 82.914

         

68.027

          

67.788

     

65.012

         

56.947

       

60.831

          

636.451

       

625.054

        

595.628

   

564.789

       

537.149

     

513.289

        

               Bonus Shares

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

SIX YEARS SUMMARY
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FORM 34FORM 34  
THE COMPANIES ORDIANCE 1984THE COMPANIES ORDIANCE 1984  

(Section 236(1) and 464)(Section 236(1) and 464)  
  
  

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDINGPATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING  
  
1.   CUIN (Incorporation Number)1.   CUIN (Incorporation Number)  00  00  00  11  00  88  00  

  
2.    Name of the Company2.    Name of the Company  BANNU WOOLLEN MIILS LIMITEDBANNU WOOLLEN MIILS LIMITED  

  
3. 3.   Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders 

aas at s at   
33  00    00  66    22  00  00  99  

  

4.    No of 4.    No of 
shareholdersshareholders  

  ShareholdingsShareholdings    Total shares heldTotal shares held   

          

190190    SShareholding from 1 to 100 shareshareholding from 1 to 100 shares    7,7,968968  

290290    SShareholding from 101 to 500 shareshareholding from 101 to 500 shares    9797,,075075  

118282    SShareholding from 501 to 1000 shareshareholding from 501 to 1000 shares    157157,,477477  

293293    SShareholdihareholding from 1001 to 5000ng from 1001 to 5000    690690,,441441  

4949    SShareholding from 5001 to 10000hareholding from 5001 to 10000    394394,,498498  

1818    SShareholding from 10001 to 15000hareholding from 10001 to 15000    215215,,554554  

1414    SShareholding from 15001 to 20000hareholding from 15001 to 20000    241241,,572572  

22    SShareholding from 20001 to 25000hareholding from 20001 to 25000    4646,,294294  

55    SShareholding from 25001 to 30000hareholding from 25001 to 30000    140140,907,907  

44    SShareholding from 30001 to 35000hareholding from 30001 to 35000    125,255125,255  

11    SShareholding from 35001 to 40000hareholding from 35001 to 40000    3939,,000000  

11    SShareholding from 40001 to 45000hareholding from 40001 to 45000    43,26143,261  

22    SShareholding from 45001 to 50000hareholding from 45001 to 50000    9090,,473473  

11    SShareholding from 50001 to 55000hareholding from 50001 to 55000    50,70050,700  

33    SShareholding from 550hareholding from 55001 to 6000001 to 60000    174174,,843843  

22    SShareholding from 60001 to 65000hareholding from 60001 to 65000    120,120,91891800  

11    SShareholding from 65001 to 70000hareholding from 65001 to 70000    66,54166,541  

33    SShareholding from 70001 to 75000hareholding from 70001 to 75000    219,599219,599  

11    SShareholding from 75001 to 80000hareholding from 75001 to 80000    76,05076,050  

11    SShareholding from 80001 to 85000hareholding from 80001 to 85000    80,99180,991  

11    SShahareholding from 85001 to 90000reholding from 85001 to 90000    87,00087,000  

11    SShareholding from 95001 to 100000hareholding from 95001 to 100000    98,65598,655  

11    SShareholding from hareholding from 110505001 to 001 to 111010000000    105105,,250250  

11    SShareholding from hareholding from 265001265001 to  to 270000270000    270,000270,000  

11    SShareholding from hareholding from 370001370001 to  to 375000375000    374,490374,490  

11    SShareholding from hareholding from 338500850011 to  to 390000390000    338585,,761761  

11    SShareholding from hareholding from 585001585001 to  to 590000590000    585,301585,301  

11    SShareholding from 620001 to 625000hareholding from 620001 to 625000    622,956622,956  

11    SShareholding from 1995001 to 2000000hareholding from 1995001 to 2000000    1,996,1701,996,170  

    TotalTotal     7,605,0007,605,000  



14 Bannu Woollen Mills Limited

    

Annual Report 2009

  
5. 5.   Categories of shareholdersCategories of shareholders    share heldshare held    PercentagePercentage  
          

55.1.1  Directors, Chief Executive Directors, Chief Executive 
Officer, and their spouse and Officer, and their spouse and 
minor children. minor children.   

    
  

890,697890,697  

  

11.7111.71  

5.2.5.2.  Associated Companies, Associated Companies, 
undertakings and related undertakings and related 
parties.parties.  

    
2,588,6232,588,623  

  
34.0434.04  

5.3 5.3   NIT and ICP NIT and ICP     792,792,951951    10.4310.43  

5.45.4  Banks Banks Development Development 
Financial InstitutionsFinancial Institutions, Non , Non 
BankingBanking  Financial Financial 
Institutions.Institutions.  

  

560560  

  

0.010.01  

5.55.5  Insurance CompaniesInsurance Companies  
  

  622,622,956956    8.198.19  

5.65.6  Modarabas and Mutual Modarabas and Mutual 
FundsFunds  

  NILNIL    0.000.00  

5.7     Share holders holding 10%5.7     Share holders holding 10%          

           Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Ltd           Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Ltd    1,991,9966,170,170    26.2526.25  

5.8     General Public 5.8     General Public           

         a.  Local         a.  Local    2,631,0612,631,061    34.6034.60  

         b.  Foreign         b.  Foreign    NILNIL      

5.9   Others5.9   Others          

        Joint Stock Companies        Joint Stock Companies     76,00376,003    1.001.00  

        Trust         Trust     2,1282,128    0.030.03  

         Other         Other    2121    0.000.00  

  
  

Note:Note:  In case there are more than one class of shares carrying voting rights, the information regarding In case there are more than one class of shares carrying voting rights, the information regarding 
each such class shall be given separately.each such class shall be given separately.  

6. Signature of Chief 6. Signature of Chief 
  Executive/ Executive/   
  SecretarySecretary  

  

    
7. 7.   Name of SiName of Signatorygnatory  AMINAMIN--URUR--RASHEEDRASHEED  

    

8.     Designation 8.     Designation   Company Secretary & General Manager Corporate AffairsCompany Secretary & General Manager Corporate Affairs   

    
9.     NIC Number9.     NIC Number  

  

11  44  33  00  11  --  44  55  77  55  77  66  44  --  33  

    

Day                  Month                           YearDay                  Month                           Year   
10.    Date10.    Date  33  00    00  66    22  00  00  99  
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DETAILS OF PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS PER 
REQUIREMENTS OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS                                       SHARES HELD 

 
1. ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKINGS & RELATED PARTIES:  

M/S JANANA DE MALUCHO TEXTILE MILLS LTD, 585,301 
M/S.BIBOJEE SERVICES (PVT) LTD. 1,996,170 
M/S UNIVERSAL INSURANCE CO. LTD, 7,152 
 

 
2. N.I.T. & I.C.P: 

M/S.INVESTMENT CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN 750 
M/S.NATIONAL INVESTMENT TRUST LIMITED 31,500 
M/S.NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN (TRUSTEE DEPTT) 760,251 
M/S.IDBP (ICP UNIT) 450 

 
3. DIRECTORS, CEO & THEIR SPOUSE AND MINOR CHILDREN: 

MR.RAZA KULI KHAN KHATTAK,  Chairman  45,259 
MRS.SHAHIDA KHATOON  50,700 
W/O MR. RAZA KULI KHAN KHATTAK 
LT.GEN. (RETD) ALI KULI KHAN KHATTAK Director 43,261 
MRS.NELOFAR ALI KULI KHAN  76,050 
W/O LT.GEN. (RETD) ALI KULI KHAN KHATTAK 
MR.AHMED KULI KHAN KHATTAK Director 45,214 
MRS.NASREEN AHMED KULI KHAN  80,991 
W/O MR.AHMED KULI KHAN KHATTAK 
MR.MUHAMMAD AZHAR KHAN  Chief Executive 30,420 
MRS.SHAMIM AZHAR  18,252 
W/O MR.MUHAMMAD AZHAR KHAN 
MR.MUSHTAQ AHMED KHAN (FCA)  Director *270,000 
MRS.SAEEDA MUSHTAQ  15,750 
W/O MR. MUSHTAQ AHMAD KHAN, FCA 
MRS.ZEB GOHAR AYUB  Director 26,997 
MRS.SHAHNAZ SAJJAD AHMED  Director 89,148 
DR. SHAHEEN KULI KHAN Director 98,655 
MR.MANZOOR AHMAD SHEIKH (NIT) Director NIL 
MR.SHER ALI KHAN (SLIC) Director NIL  

 
4. EXECUTIVES 37,303 
 
5.  JOINT STOCK COMPANIES 76,003 
  
6.  BANKS, DEVELOPMENT FINANCE INSTITUTIONS,  
 NON-BANKING FINANCE, INSTITUTIONS, INSURANCE  
 COMPANIES, MODARBAS & MUTUAL FUNDS       623,516 
 
7. SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 10% OR MORE: 

M/S.BIBOJEE SERVICES (PVT) LTD. 1,996,170 
 
8. GENERAL PUBLIC & OTHERS 2,595,907 

 
*These shares also include the shares registered in the name of his wife and daughter 
pledged with bank through CDC. 
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE
CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

[ See clause (xlv)]
Name of Company BANNU WOOLLEN MILLS LIMITED

TH
Year Ended        30  JUNE 2009

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate 
Governance contained in listing regulations of Karachi Stock Exchange 
(Guarantee) Limited and  Islamabad Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited for the 
purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a listed company 
is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following 
manner:

1. The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive 
directors and directors representing minority interests on its Board of 
Directors. At present the Board includes EIGHT independent non-executive 
directors.

2. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in 
more than ten listed companies, including this Company.

3. All the directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of 
them has defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or a 
NBFI, and none of then is member of Stock Exchange.

4. No casual vacancy occurred in the Board of Directors of the Company 
thduring the year ended 30  June 2009.

5. The Company has prepared a Statement of Ethics and Business Practices, 
which has been signed by all the directors and employees of the Company.

6. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate 
strategy and significant policies of the Company. A complete record of 
particulars of significant policies; along with the dates on which they were 
approved or amended has been maintained.

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on 
material transactions, including appointment and determination of 
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the CEO and 
other executive directors, have been taken by the Board.

8. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his 
absence, by a director elected by the Board for this purpose and the Board 
met at least once in every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, 
along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven days 
before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately 
recorded and circulated.

9. The Directors are well conversant with the legal requirements and such are 
fully aware of their duties and responsibilities.

10. Their were no new appointments of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of 
th

Internal Audit during the year ended 30  June 2009.



 
 

17 Bannu Woollen Mills Limited

Annual Report 2009
 

11. The Directors Report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the 
requirements of the Code and fully describes the salient matters required to 
be disclosed.

12. The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by CEO and 
CFO before approval of the Board.

13. The directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of 
the Company other than that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

14. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting 
requirements of the Code.

15. The Board has formed an audit committee. It comprises THREE members, 
of whom TWO are non-executive directors including the chairman of the 
committee.

16. The meetings of the audit committee were held at least once in every quarter 
prior to approval of interim and final results of the Company and as required 
by the Code. The terms of reference of the committee have been formed and 
advised to the committee for compliance.

17. The Board has set-up an effective internal audit function and the employees 
working therein are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the 
purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the 
Company and they are involved in the internal audit function on a full time 
basis.

18. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been 
given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review programme of 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any of the 
partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of 
the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with 
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics 
as adopted by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

19. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been 
appointed to provide other services except in accordance with the listing 
regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC 
guidelines in this regard.

20. We confirm that all other material principles contained in the Code have 
been complied with.

Signature
(Name in block letters) MUHAMMAD AZHAR KHAN

(Chief Executive)

CNIC Number 11101-1484880-5
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HAMEED  CHAUDHRI  &  CO.,

LAHORE; 08 October, 2009 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH 
BEST PRACTICES OF THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

AsAs partpart ofof ourour auditaudit ofof thethe financialfinancial statementsstatements wewe areare requiredrequired toto obtainobtain anan
understandingunderstanding ofof thethe accountingaccounting andand internalinternal controlcontrol systemssystems sufficientsufficient toto planplan thethe auditaudit

andand developdevelop anan effectiveeffective auditaudit approach.approach. WeWe havehave notnot carriedcarried outout anyany specialspecial reviewreview ofof
thethe internalinternal controlcontrol systemsystem toto enableenable usus toto expressexpress anan opinionopinion asas toto whetherwhether thethe BoardsBoards

statementstatement onon internalinternal controlcontrol coverscovers allall controlscontrols andand thethe effectivenesseffectiveness ofof suchsuch internalinternal
controls.controls.

BasedBased onon ourour review,review, nothingnothing hashas comecome toto ourour attentionattention whichwhich causescauses usus toto believebelieve thatthat

thethe StatementStatement ofof ComplianceCompliance doesdoes notnot appropriatelyappropriately reflectreflect thethe statusstatus ofof thethe Company'sCompany's

compliance,compliance, inin allall materialmaterial respects,respects, withwith thethe bestbest practicespractices containedcontained inin thethe CodeCode ofof
Corporate Governance as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June, 2009.Corporate Governance as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June, 2009.

WeWe havehave reviewedreviewed thethe StatementStatement ofof ComplianceCompliance withwith thethe bestbest practicespractices containedcontained inin thethe

CodeCode ofof CorporateCorporate GovernanceGovernance preparedprepared byby thethe BoardBoard ofof DirectorsDirectors ofof BANNUBANNU WOOLLENWOOLLEN
MILLSMILLS LIMITEDLIMITED toto complycomply withwith thethe ListingListing RegulationRegulation No.No. 3535 ofof thethe KarachiKarachi StockStock

Exchange (Guarantee) Limited and Chapter XI of the Listing Regulations of the Islamabad Exchange (Guarantee) Limited and Chapter XI of the Listing Regulations of the Islamabad 
Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited where the Company is listed.Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited where the Company is listed.

TheThe responsibilityresponsibility forfor compliancecompliance withwith thethe CodeCode ofof CorporateCorporate GovernanceGovernance isis thatthat ofof thethe
BoardBoard ofof DirectorsDirectors ofof thethe Company.Company. OurOur responsibilityresponsibility isis toto review,review, toto thethe extentextent wherewhere

suchsuch compliancecompliance cancan bebe objectivelyobjectively verified,verified, whetherwhether thethe StatementStatement ofof ComplianceCompliance
reflectsreflects thethe statusstatus ofof thethe Company'sCompany's compliancecompliance withwith thethe provisionsprovisions ofof thethe CodeCode ofof

CorporateCorporate GovernanceGovernance andand reportreport ifif itit doesdoes not.not. AA reviewreview isis limitedlimited primarilyprimarily toto inquiriesinquiries

ofof thethe CompanyCompany personnelpersonnel andand reviewreview ofof variousvarious documentsdocuments preparedprepared byby thethe CompanyCompany toto

comply with the Code.comply with the Code.

Further,Further, SubSub -- RegulationRegulation (xiii)(xiii) ofof ListingListing RegulationsRegulations 3737 (now(now 35)35) notifiednotified byby TheThe KarachiKarachi

StockStock ExchangeExchange (Guarantee)(Guarantee) LimitedLimited videvide circularcircular KSE/N-269KSE/N-269 dateddated 1919 January,January, 20092009
requiresrequires thethe CompanyCompany toto placeplace beforebefore thethe BoardBoard ofof DirectorsDirectors forfor theirtheir considerationconsideration andand
approvalapproval relatedrelated partyparty transactionstransactions distinguishingdistinguishing betweenbetween transactionstransactions carried-outcarried-out onon

termsterms equivalentequivalent toto thosethose thatthat prevailprevail inin arm'sarm's lengthlength transactionstransactions andand transactionstransactions

whichwhich areare notnot executedexecuted atat arm'sarm's lengthlength priceprice recordingrecording properproper justificationjustification forfor usingusing suchsuch

alternatealternate pricingpricing mechanism.mechanism. Further,Further, allall suchsuch transactionstransactions areare alsoalso requiredrequired toto bebe

separatelyseparately placedplaced beforebefore thethe auditaudit committee.committee. WeWe areare onlyonly requiredrequired andand havehave ensuredensured
compliancecompliance ofof requirementrequirement toto thethe extentextent ofof approvalapproval ofof thethe relatedrelated partyparty transactionstransactions byby

thethe BoardBoard ofof DirectorsDirectors andand placementplacement ofof suchsuch transactionstransactions beforebefore thethe auditaudit committee.committee.
WeWe havehave notnot carried-outcarried-out anyany proceduresprocedures toto determinedetermine whetherwhether thethe relatedrelated partyparty

transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.
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(a)(a)

(b)(b) in our opinion:in our opinion:

(i)(i)

(ii)(ii)

(iii)(iii)

(c)(c)

(d)(d)

 HAMEED CHAUDHRI  &  CO.,

LAHORE; 08 October, 2009  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
     Engagement Partner: Abdul Majeed Chaudhri

thethe expenditureexpenditure incurredincurred duringduring thethe yearyear waswas forfor thethe purposepurpose ofof thethe Company'sCompany's

business; andbusiness; and

inin ourour opinion,opinion, nono zakatzakat waswas deductibledeductible atat sourcesource underunder thethe ZakatZakat andand UshrUshr

Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

WeWe havehave auditedaudited thethe annexedannexed balancebalance sheetsheet ofof BANNUBANNU WOOLLENWOOLLEN MILLSMILLS LIMITEDLIMITED asas atat

3030 June,June, 20092009 andand thethe relatedrelated profitprofit andand lossloss account,account, cashcash flowflow statementstatement andand

statementstatement ofof changeschanges inin equityequity togethertogether withwith thethe notesnotes formingforming partpart thereof,thereof, forfor thethe yearyear

thenthen endedended andand wewe statestate thatthat wewe havehave obtainedobtained allall thethe informationinformation andand explanationsexplanations

which,which, toto thethe bestbest ofof ourour knowledgeknowledge andand belief,belief, werewere necessarynecessary forfor thethe purposespurposes ofof ourour

audit.audit.

ItIt isis thethe responsibilityresponsibility ofof thethe Company'sCompany's managementmanagement toto establishestablish andand maintainmaintain aa systemsystem

ofof internalinternal control,control, andand prepareprepare andand presentpresent thethe aboveabove saidsaid statementsstatements inin conformityconformity withwith

thethe approvedapproved accountingaccounting standardsstandards andand thethe requirementsrequirements ofof thethe CompaniesCompanies Ordinance,Ordinance,

1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

inin ourour opinionopinion andand toto thethe bestbest ofof ourour informationinformation andand accordingaccording toto thethe

explanationsexplanations givengiven toto us,us, thethe balancebalance sheet,sheet, profitprofit andand lossloss account,account, cashcash flowflow

statementstatement andand statementstatement ofof changeschanges inin equityequity togethertogether withwith thethe notesnotes formingforming partpart

thereofthereof conformconform withwith approvedapproved accountingaccounting standardsstandards asas applicableapplicable inin Pakistan,Pakistan, and,and,

givegive thethe informationinformation requiredrequired byby thethe CompaniesCompanies Ordinance,Ordinance, 1984,1984, inin thethe mannermanner soso

requiredrequired andand respectivelyrespectively givegive aa truetrue andand fairfair viewview ofof thethe statestate ofof thethe Company'sCompany's

affairsaffairs asas atat 3030 June,June, 20092009 andand ofof thethe loss,loss, itsits cashcash flowsflows andand changeschanges inin equityequity forfor

the year then ended; andthe year then ended; and

WeWe conductedconducted ourour auditaudit inin accordanceaccordance withwith thethe auditingauditing standardsstandards asas applicableapplicable inin

Pakistan.Pakistan. TheseThese standardsstandards requirerequire thatthat wewe planplan andand performperform thethe auditaudit toto obtainobtain

reasonablereasonable assuranceassurance aboutabout whetherwhether thethe aboveabove saidsaid statementsstatements areare freefree ofof anyany materialmaterial

misstatement.misstatement. AnAn auditaudit includesincludes examining,examining, onon aa testtest basis,basis, evidenceevidence supportingsupporting thethe

amountsamounts andand disclosuresdisclosures inin thethe aboveabove saidsaid statements.statements. AnAn auditaudit alsoalso includesincludes assessingassessing

thethe accountingaccounting policiespolicies andand significantsignificant estimatesestimates mademade byby management,management, asas wellwell as,as,

evaluatingevaluating thethe overalloverall presentationpresentation ofof thethe aboveabove saidsaid statements.statements. WeWe believebelieve thatthat ourour

auditaudit providesprovides aa reasonablereasonable basisbasis forfor ourour opinionopinion and,and, afterafter duedue verification,verification, wewe reportreport

that:that:

inin ourour opinion,opinion, properproper booksbooks ofof accountaccount havehave beenbeen keptkept byby thethe CompanyCompany asas requiredrequired

by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;

thethe balancebalance sheetsheet andand profitprofit andand lossloss accountaccount togethertogether withwith thethe notesnotes thereonthereon

havehave beenbeen drawndrawn upup inin conformityconformity withwith thethe CompaniesCompanies Ordinance,Ordinance, 1984,1984, andand areare

inin agreementagreement withwith thethe booksbooks ofof accountaccount andand areare furtherfurther inin accordanceaccordance withwith

accounting policies consistently applied ;accounting policies consistently applied ;

thethe businessbusiness conducted,conducted, investmentsinvestments mademade andand thethe expenditureexpenditure incurredincurred duringduring

the year were in accordance with the objects of the Company;the year were in accordance with the objects of the Company;
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20092009 20082008 20092009 20082008

NoteNote NoteNote

EQUITY AND LIABILITIESEQUITY AND LIABILITIES ASSETSASSETS

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE CAPITAL AND NON-CURRENT ASSETSNON-CURRENT ASSETS

RESERVESRESERVES Property, plant andProperty, plant and

Authorised capitalAuthorised capital equipmentequipment

10,000,000 ordinary10,000,000 ordinary Operating fixed assetsOperating fixed assets 1717 440,875440,875 416,909416,909
shares of Rs.10 eachshares of Rs.10 each 100,000100,000 100,000100,000

Capital work-in-progressCapital work-in-progress 1818 33,18033,180 2,2652,265

Issued, subscribed andIssued, subscribed and

paid-up capitalpaid-up capital 77 76,05076,050 76,05076,050 474,055474,055 419,174419,174

Investments in Associated Investments in Associated 

ReservesReserves 88 137,400137,400 137,400137,400 CompaniesCompanies 1919 3,3803,380 31,49531,495

Unappropriated profitUnappropriated profit 99,06099,060 100,268100,268 Deposit for sharesDeposit for shares 2020 22,81822,818 22,81822,818

312,510312,510 313,718313,718 Security depositsSecurity deposits 276276 266266

SURPLUS ONSURPLUS ON

REVALUATION OFREVALUATION OF 500,529500,529 473,753473,753

PROPERTY, PLANTPROPERTY, PLANT CURRENT ASSETSCURRENT ASSETS

AND EQUIPMENTAND EQUIPMENT 99 241,027241,027 243,309243,309 Stores and sparesStores and spares 2121 20,30420,304 19,17719,177

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIESNON-CURRENT LIABILITIES Stock-in-tradeStock-in-trade 2222 202,272202,272 139,999139,999

Liabilities against assetsLiabilities against assets

subject to finance leasesubject to finance lease 1010 1,7891,789 1,8831,883 Trade debtsTrade debts 2323 50,10650,106 50,78850,788

Staff retirementStaff retirement Advances to employeesAdvances to employees

benefits - gratuitybenefits - gratuity 1111 19,79019,790 11,47111,471 - unsecured - unsecured 

considered goodconsidered good 197197 338338

Deferred taxationDeferred taxation 1212 61,33561,335 54,67354,673

Advance paymentsAdvance payments 490490 194194

82,91482,914 68,02768,027

CURRENT LIABILITIESCURRENT LIABILITIES Trade deposits andTrade deposits and

Current portion of liabilitiesCurrent portion of liabilities prepaymentsprepayments 2424 453453 3,9633,963

against assets subject toagainst assets subject to

finance leasefinance lease 1010 1,5551,555 1,8611,861 Sales tax refundableSales tax refundable 4,0124,012 4,3974,397

Short term financesShort term finances 1313 109,414109,414 33,12133,121 Due from AssociatedDue from Associated

CompaniesCompanies 2525 6,1456,145 4,8044,804

Trade and other payablesTrade and other payables 1414 46,26046,260 37,16337,163

Other receivablesOther receivables 00 9898

TaxationTaxation 1515 8,2358,235 16,30016,300

Income tax refundable,Income tax refundable,

165,464165,464 88,44588,445 advance tax and taxadvance tax and tax

deducted at sourcededucted at source 16,64216,642 15,43115,431

CONTINGENCIES ANDCONTINGENCIES AND

COMMITMENTSCOMMITMENTS 1616 Cash and bank balancesCash and bank balances 2626 765765 557557

301,386301,386 239,746239,746

801,915801,915 713,499713,499 801,915801,915 713,499713,499

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 JUNE, 2009

Lt. Gen (Retd) 
Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
         Director

Muhammad Azhar Khan
Chief Executive
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20092009 20082008
Note Note 

SALESSALES 2727 391,280391,280 331,889331,889

COST OF SALESCOST OF SALES 2828 295,269295,269 241,378241,378

GROSS PROFITGROSS PROFIT 96,01196,011 90,51190,511

DISTRIBUTION COSTDISTRIBUTION COST 2929 16,04516,045 14,96414,964

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 3030 33,14433,144 25,04725,047

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSESOTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 3131 4,2974,297 4,6274,627

53,48653,486 44,63844,638

42,52542,525 45,87345,873

OTHER OPERATING INCOMEOTHER OPERATING INCOME 3232 2,7742,774 2,9822,982

OPERATING PROFITOPERATING PROFIT 45,29945,299 48,85548,855

FINANCE COSTFINANCE COST 3333 5,6985,698 4,5824,582

39,60139,601 44,27344,273

SHARE OF LOSS OF ASSOCIATED COMPANIES SHARE OF LOSS OF ASSOCIATED COMPANIES - Net- Net 1919 (14,351)(14,351) (604)(604)

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON INVESTMENTSIMPAIRMENT LOSS ON INVESTMENTS
IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIESIN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 1919 (15,541)(15,541) 00

(29,892)(29,892) (604)(604)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATIONPROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9,7099,709 43,66943,669

TAXATIONTAXATION
- Current year- Current year 1515 8,2358,235 16,30016,300

- Prior years'- Prior years' 1515 7979 135135

- Deferred- Deferred 1212 6,6626,662 (224)(224)

14,97614,976 16,21116,211

(LOSS) / PROFIT AFTER TAXATION(LOSS) / PROFIT AFTER TAXATION (5,267)(5,267) 27,45827,458

(LOSS) / EARNINGS PER SHARE (LOSS) / EARNINGS PER SHARE 3434 (0.69)(0.69) 3.613.61

- The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.- The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

- Appropriations have been reflected in the statement of changes in equity.- Appropriations have been reflected in the statement of changes in equity.

------- Rupees -------------- Rupees -------

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTPROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2009FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2009

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

Lt. Gen (Retd) 
Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
         Director

Muhammad Azhar Khan
Chief Executive
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20092009 20082008

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIESCASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year - before taxation and share of loss and Profit for the year - before taxation and share of loss and 

impairment loss on investments in Associated Companiesimpairment loss on investments in Associated Companies 39,60139,601 44,27344,273
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:

DepreciationDepreciation 13,44513,445 13,68913,689
Unclaimed balances written-backUnclaimed balances written-back (2)(2) (198)(198)
 (Gain) / loss on disposal of operating fixed assets (Gain) / loss on disposal of operating fixed assets (528)(528) 2121
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity (net)Staff retirement benefits - gratuity (net) 8,3198,319 6565
Mark-up on bank deposits, dealers' and Mark-up on bank deposits, dealers' and 

Associated Companies' balancesAssociated Companies' balances (1,011)(1,011) (1,883)(1,883)
Finance costFinance cost 5,6985,698 4,5824,582
Workers' welfare fundWorkers' welfare fund 853853 956956

CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIESCASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
 - Before working capital changes - Before working capital changes 66,37566,375 61,50561,505

(Increase) / decrease in current assets(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores and sparesStores and spares (1,127)(1,127) (1,928)(1,928)
Stock-in-tradeStock-in-trade (62,273)(62,273) (30,375)(30,375)
Trade debtsTrade debts 682682 (15,357)(15,357)
Advances to employeesAdvances to employees 141141 538538
Advance paymentsAdvance payments (296)(296) (5)(5)
Trade deposits and prepaymentsTrade deposits and prepayments 3,5103,510 (3,398)(3,398)
Sales tax refundableSales tax refundable 385385 (1,342)(1,342)
Due from Associated CompaniesDue from Associated Companies (2,432)(2,432) (2,675)(2,675)
Other receivables Other receivables 9898 178178

Increase in trade and other payablesIncrease in trade and other payables 9,2019,201 3,2063,206

(52,111)(52,111) (51,158)(51,158)

CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  - Before taxation- Before taxation 14,26414,264 10,34710,347
Taxes paidTaxes paid (18,545)(18,545) (20,030)(20,030)

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATINGNET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES - After taxation- After taxation (4,281)(4,281) (9,683)(9,683)
Security depositsSecurity deposits (10)(10) 00

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIESNET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (4,291)(4,291) (9,683)(9,683)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIESCASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditureFixed capital expenditure (68,610)(68,610) (5,034)(5,034)
Sale proceeds of operating fixed assetsSale proceeds of operating fixed assets 812812 459459
Mark-up received on bank deposits, dealers'Mark-up received on bank deposits, dealers'

and Associated Companies' balancesand Associated Companies' balances 2,1022,102 1,3521,352

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIESNET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (65,696)(65,696) (3,223)(3,223)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIESCASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Short term finances - netShort term finances - net 76,29376,293 10,34510,345
Lease finances - netLease finances - net (400)(400) 594594
Finance cost paidFinance cost paid (5,698)(5,698) (4,582)(4,582)

NET CASH INFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIESNET CASH INFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 70,19570,195 6,3576,357

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSNET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 208208 (6,549)(6,549)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - At the beginning of the year- At the beginning of the year 557557 7,1067,106

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - At the end of the year- At the end of the year 765765 557557

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2009

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

Lt. Gen (Retd) 
Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
         Director

Muhammad Azhar Khan
Chief Executive
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Balance as at 30 June, 2007Balance as at 30 June, 2007 50,70050,700 19,44519,445 117,955117,955 00 93,89093,890 281,990281,990

TransferTransfer 00 00 00 25,35025,350 (25,350)(25,350) 00

Nominal value of bonusNominal value of bonus

shares issuedshares issued 25,35025,350 00 00 (25,350)(25,350) 00 00

Profit for the yearProfit for the year
ended 30 June, 2008ended 30 June, 2008 00 00 00 00 27,45827,458 27,45827,458

Transfer from surplus on  Transfer from surplus on  
revaluation of property, plant revaluation of property, plant 
 & equipment on account of : & equipment on account of :
- incremental depreciation for the- incremental depreciation for the

year - net of deferred taxationyear - net of deferred taxation 00 00 00 00 2,3942,394 2,3942,394
- realised on disposal of- realised on disposal of

property, plant & equipmentproperty, plant & equipment
- net of deferred taxation- net of deferred taxation 00 00 00 00 147147 147147

Effect of items directly credited inEffect of items directly credited in

equity by the Associated Companiesequity by the Associated Companies 00 00 00 00 1,7291,729 1,7291,729

Balance as at 30 June, 2008Balance as at 30 June, 2008 76,05076,050 19,44519,445 117,955117,955 00 100,268100,268 313,718313,718

Loss for the yearLoss for the year
ended 30 June, 2009ended 30 June, 2009 00 00 00 00 (5,267)(5,267) (5,267)(5,267)

Transfer from surplus on  Transfer from surplus on  
revaluation of property, plant revaluation of property, plant 
 & equipment on account of : & equipment on account of :
- incremental depreciation for the- incremental depreciation for the

year - net of deferred taxationyear - net of deferred taxation 00 00 00 00 2,2732,273 2,2732,273
- realised on disposal of- realised on disposal of

property, plant & equipmentproperty, plant & equipment
- net of deferred taxation- net of deferred taxation 00 00 00 00 99 99

Effect of items directly credited inEffect of items directly credited in
equity by the Associated Companiesequity by the Associated Companies 00 00 00 00 1,7771,777 1,7771,777

Balance as at 30 June, 2009Balance as at 30 June, 2009 76,05076,050 19,44519,445 117,955117,955 00 99,06099,060 312,510312,510

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

------------------------- Rupees in thousand -------------------------------------------------- Rupees in thousand -------------------------

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2009

ShareShare
capitalcapital

Unappr-Unappr-
opriatedopriated

profitprofit
TotalTotal

CapitalCapital
reservereserve

GeneralGeneral
reservereserve

Reserve Reserve 
for issue for issue 
of bonus of bonus 

sharesshares

Lt. Gen (Retd) 
Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
         Director

Muhammad Azhar Khan
Chief Executive
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1.1. CORPORATE INFORMATIONCORPORATE INFORMATION

2.2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCESTATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

3.3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENTBASIS OF MEASUREMENT

3.13.1 Accounting conventionAccounting convention

3.23.2 Functional and presentation currencyFunctional and presentation currency

4.4. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTSUSE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

a)a) staff retirement benefits;staff retirement benefits;

b)b) recognition and measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities;recognition and measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities;

c)c) taxation;taxation;

d)d) useful life of property, plant and equipment;useful life of property, plant and equipment;

e)e) provision against slow moving inventories; andprovision against slow moving inventories; and

f)f) provision for impairment of trade debts.provision for impairment of trade debts.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2009

BannuBannu WoollenWoollen MillsMills LimitedLimited (the(the Company)Company) waswas incorporatedincorporated inin PakistanPakistan asas aa PublicPublic

CompanyCompany inin thethe yearyear 19601960 andand itsits sharesshares areare quotedquoted onon KarachiKarachi andand IslamabadIslamabad StockStock

Exchanges.Exchanges. ItIt isis principallyprincipally engagedengaged inin manufacturemanufacture andand salesale ofof woollenwoollen yarn,yarn, clothcloth andand

blankets.blankets. TheThe Company'sCompany's registeredregistered officeoffice isis locatedlocated atat Habibabad,Habibabad, KohatKohat andand itsits MillsMills areare

located at D.I.Khan Road, Bannu.located at D.I.Khan Road, Bannu.

TheseThese financialfinancial statementsstatements havehave beenbeen preparedprepared inin accordanceaccordance withwith thethe approvedapproved accountingaccounting

standardsstandards asas applicableapplicable inin Pakistan.Pakistan. ApprovedApproved accountingaccounting standardsstandards comprisecomprise ofof suchsuch

InternationalInternational FinancialFinancial ReportingReporting StandardsStandards (IFRSs)(IFRSs) issuedissued byby thethe InternationalInternational AccountingAccounting

StandardsStandards BoardBoard asas areare notifiednotified underunder thethe provisionsprovisions ofof thethe CompaniesCompanies Ordinance,Ordinance, 19841984

(the(the Ordinance),Ordinance), thethe requirementsrequirements ofof thethe OrdinanceOrdinance andand thethe directivesdirectives issuedissued byby thethe

SecuritiesSecurities andand ExchangeExchange CommissionCommission ofof PakistanPakistan (SECP).(SECP). WhereWhere thethe requirementsrequirements ofof thethe

OrdinanceOrdinance andand thethe directivesdirectives issuedissued byby SECPSECP differdiffer withwith thethe requirementsrequirements ofof IFRSs,IFRSs, thethe

requirements of the Ordinance and the directives issued by SECP shall prevail.requirements of the Ordinance and the directives issued by SECP shall prevail.

TheseThese financialfinancial statementsstatements havehave beenbeen preparedprepared underunder thethe historicalhistorical costcost conventionconvention

except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

TheseThese financialfinancial statementsstatements areare presentedpresented inin PakistanPakistan Rupees,Rupees, whichwhich isis alsoalso thethe

Company'sCompany's functionalfunctional currency.currency. AllAll financialfinancial informationinformation presentedpresented inin PakistanPakistan

Rupees has been rounded to the nearest thousand.Rupees has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

TheThe preparationpreparation ofof financialfinancial statementsstatements inin conformityconformity withwith approvedapproved accountingaccounting standards,standards,

asas applicableapplicable inin Pakistan,Pakistan, requiresrequires thethe useuse ofof certaincertain criticalcritical accountingaccounting estimates.estimates. ItIt alsoalso

requiresrequires managementmanagement toto exerciseexercise itsits judgmentjudgment inin thethe processprocess ofof applyingapplying thethe Company'sCompany's

accountingaccounting policies.policies. EstimatesEstimates andand judgmentsjudgments areare continuallycontinually evaluatedevaluated andand areare basedbased onon

historicalhistorical experience,experience, includingincluding expectationsexpectations ofof futurefuture eventsevents thatthat areare believedbelieved toto bebe

reasonablereasonable underunder thethe circumstances.circumstances. TheThe areasareas wherewhere assumptionsassumptions andand estimatesestimates areare

significantsignificant toto thethe Company'sCompany's financialfinancial statementsstatements oror wherewhere judgmentjudgment waswas exercisedexercised inin

application of accounting policies are as follows:application of accounting policies are as follows:
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5.5. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, IFRIC INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTSACCOUNTING STANDARDS, IFRIC INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS

5.15.1

(a)(a)

(b)(b)

5.25.2

(a)(a)

(b)(b) IAS 19 (Amendment), Employee Benefits (effective from 01 January, 2009). IAS 19 (Amendment), Employee Benefits (effective from 01 January, 2009). 

(i)(i)

(ii)(ii)

IASIAS 11 (Revised),(Revised), PresentationPresentation ofof FinancialFinancial StatementsStatements (effective(effective fromfrom 0101 January,January,
2009),2009), waswas issuedissued inin SeptemberSeptember 2007.2007. TheThe revisedrevised standardstandard prohibitsprohibits thethe
presentationpresentation ofof itemsitems ofof incomeincome andand expensesexpenses (that(that is,is, non-ownernon-owner changeschanges inin equity)equity)
inin thethe statementstatement ofof changeschanges inin equity,equity, requiringrequiring non-ownernon-owner changeschanges inin equityequity toto bebe
presentedpresented separatelyseparately fromfrom ownerowner changeschanges inin equity.equity. AllAll non-ownernon-owner changeschanges inin equityequity
willwill bebe requiredrequired toto bebe shownshown inin aa performanceperformance statement,statement, butbut entitiesentities maymay choosechoose
whetherwhether toto presentpresent oneone performanceperformance statementstatement (the(the statementstatement ofof comprehensivecomprehensive
income)income) oror twotwo statementsstatements (the(the incomeincome statementstatement andand statementstatement ofof comprehensivecomprehensive
income).income). WhereWhere entitiesentities restaterestate oror reclassifyreclassify comparativecomparative information,information, theythey willwill bebe
requiredrequired toto presentpresent aa restatedrestated balancebalance sheetsheet asas atat thethe beginningbeginning ofof thethe comparativecomparative
periodperiod inin additionaddition toto thethe currentcurrent requirementrequirement toto presentpresent balancebalance sheetssheets atat thethe endend ofof

thethe currentcurrent periodperiod andand comparativecomparative period.period. TheThe adoptionadoption ofof thethe aboveabove standardstandard willwill
only impact the presentation of the financial statements.only impact the presentation of the financial statements.

OtherOther newnew standards,standards, interpretationsinterpretations andand amendmentsamendments toto existingexisting standardsstandards thatthat
areare mandatorymandatory forfor accountingaccounting periodsperiods beginningbeginning onon oror afterafter 0101 July,July, 2008,2008, whichwhich areare
notnot consideredconsidered relevantrelevant nornor havehave anyany significantsignificant effecteffect onon thethe Company'sCompany's operationsoperations
are not detailed in these financial statements.are not detailed in these financial statements.

Standards,Standards, interpretationsinterpretations andand amendmentsamendments toto publishedpublished approvedapproved accountingaccounting
standards that are not yet effectivestandards that are not yet effective

TheThe followingfollowing standards,standards, amendmentsamendments andand interpretationsinterpretations toto existingexisting standardsstandards havehave
beenbeen publishedpublished andand areare mandatorymandatory forfor thethe Company'sCompany's accountingaccounting periodsperiods beginningbeginning
on or after 01 July, 2009:on or after 01 July, 2009:

TheThe amendmentamendment clarifiesclarifies thatthat aa planplan amendmentamendment thatthat resultsresults inin aa changechange inin thethe
extentextent toto whichwhich benefitbenefit promisespromises areare affectedaffected byby futurefuture salarysalary increasesincreases isis aa
curtailment,curtailment, whilewhile anan amendmentamendment thatthat changeschanges benefitsbenefits attributableattributable toto pastpast

serviceservice givesgives riserise toto aa negativenegative pastpast serviceservice costcost ifif itit resultsresults inin aa reductionreduction inin thethe
present value of the defined benefit obligation. present value of the defined benefit obligation. 

Standards,Standards, interpretationsinterpretations andand amendmentsamendments toto thethe publishedpublished approvedapproved
accounting standards that are effective in the current accounting yearaccounting standards that are effective in the current accounting year

TheThe followingfollowing standards,standards, interpretationsinterpretations andand amendmentsamendments toto existingexisting standardsstandards havehave

beenbeen publishedpublished thatthat areare mandatorymandatory andand relevantrelevant forfor thethe Company'sCompany's accountingaccounting yearyear
beginning on 01 July, 2008:beginning on 01 July, 2008:

IFRSIFRS 77 'Financial'Financial Instruments:Instruments: Disclosures'Disclosures' -- TheThe SecuritiesSecurities && ExchangeExchange

CommissionCommission ofof PakistanPakistan (SECP),(SECP), videvide SROSRO 411(I)/2008411(I)/2008 dateddated 2828 April,April, 20082008 notifiednotified
thethe adoptionadoption ofof IFRSIFRS 77 whichwhich isis mandatorymandatory forfor thethe Company'sCompany's accountingaccounting periodsperiods
beginningbeginning onon oror afterafter thethe datedate ofof notificationnotification i.e.i.e. 2828 April,April, 2008.2008. IFRSIFRS 77 hashas
supersededsuperseded IASIAS 3030 andand disclosuredisclosure requirementsrequirements ofof IASIAS 32.32. AdoptionAdoption ofof IFRSIFRS 77 hashas
onlyonly impactedimpacted thethe formatformat andand extentextent ofof disclosuresdisclosures presentedpresented inin thethe financialfinancial

statements.statements.

TheThe definitiondefinition ofof returnreturn onon planplan assetsassets hashas beenbeen amendedamended toto statestate thatthat planplan
administrationadministration costscosts areare deducteddeducted inin thethe calculationcalculation ofof returnreturn onon planplan assetsassets
onlyonly toto thethe extentextent thatthat suchsuch costscosts havehave beenbeen excludedexcluded fromfrom measurementmeasurement ofof thethe
defined benefit obligation.defined benefit obligation.
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(iii)(iii)

(iv)(iv)

(c)(c)

(d)(d)

(e)(e)

(f)(f)

(g)(g) AmendmentAmendment toto IFRSIFRS 22 'Share-based'Share-based PaymentPayment -- VestingVesting ConditionsConditions andand Cancellations'Cancellations'

clarifiesclarifies thethe definitiondefinition ofof vestingvesting conditions,conditions, introducesintroduces thethe conceptconcept ofof non-vestingnon-vesting

conditions,conditions, requiresrequires non-vestingnon-vesting conditionsconditions toto bebe reflectedreflected inin grant-dategrant-date fairfair valuevalue

andand providesprovides thethe accountingaccounting treatmenttreatment forfor non-vestingnon-vesting conditionsconditions andand cancellations.cancellations.

TheThe amendmentsamendments toto IFRSIFRS 22 willwill havehave nono impactimpact onon thethe Company'sCompany's financialfinancial

statements as the Company has no such share-based payments.statements as the Company has no such share-based payments.

ThereThere areare otherother amendmentsamendments toto thethe approvedapproved accountingaccounting standardsstandards andand interpretationsinterpretations thatthat

areare mandatorymandatory forfor accountingaccounting periodsperiods beginningbeginning onon oror afterafter 0101 July,July, 20092009 butbut areare

consideredconsidered notnot toto bebe relevantrelevant oror toto havehave anyany significantsignificant effecteffect onon thethe Company'sCompany's operationsoperations

and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

TheThe distinctiondistinction betweenbetween shortshort termterm andand longlong termterm employeeemployee benefitsbenefits willwill bebe

basedbased onon whetherwhether benefitsbenefits areare duedue toto bebe settledsettled withinwithin oror afterafter 1212 monthsmonths ofof

employee service being rendered.employee service being rendered.

IASIAS 3636 (Amendment),(Amendment), ImpairmentImpairment ofof AssetsAssets (effective(effective fromfrom 0101 January,January, 2009).2009). AsAs perper

thethe newnew requirements,requirements, wherewhere fairfair valuevalue lessless costscosts toto sellsell isis calculatedcalculated onon thethe basisbasis ofof

discounteddiscounted cashcash flows,flows, disclosuresdisclosures equivalentequivalent toto thosethose forfor value-in-usevalue-in-use calculationcalculation

shouldshould bebe made.made. ThisThis amendmentamendment isis notnot expectedexpected toto havehave aa significantsignificant effecteffect onon thethe

Company's financial statements.Company's financial statements.

IASIAS 3838 (Amendment),(Amendment), IntangibleIntangible AssetsAssets (effective(effective fromfrom 0101 January,January, 2009).2009). TheThe

amendedamended standardstandard statesstates thatthat aa prepaymentprepayment maymay onlyonly bebe recognisedrecognised inin thethe eventevent

thatthat paymentpayment hashas beenbeen mademade inin advanceadvance ofof obtainingobtaining rightright ofof accessaccess toto goodsgoods oror

receiptreceipt ofof services.services. ThisThis amendmentamendment isis notnot expectedexpected toto havehave aa significantsignificant effecteffect onon thethe

Company's financial statements.Company's financial statements.

IASIAS 37,37, Provisions,Provisions, ContingentContingent LiabilitiesLiabilities andand ContingentContingent Assets',Assets', requiresrequires

contingentcontingent liabilitiesliabilities toto bebe disclosed,disclosed, notnot recognised.recognised. IASIAS 1919 hashas beenbeen amendedamended

to be consistent.to be consistent.

TheThe managementmanagement isis inin thethe processprocess ofof assessingassessing thethe impactimpact ofof adoptionadoption ofof IASIAS 1919 onon

the Exchange's financial statements.the Exchange's financial statements.

IASIAS 2323 (Amendment),(Amendment), 'Borrowing'Borrowing Costs'Costs' (effective(effective fromfrom 0101 January,January, 2009).2009). ItIt requiresrequires

anan entityentity toto capitalisecapitalise borrowingborrowing costscosts directlydirectly attributableattributable toto thethe acquisition,acquisition,

constructionconstruction oror productionproduction ofof aa qualifyingqualifying assetasset (one(one thatthat takestakes aa substantialsubstantial periodperiod

ofof timetime toto getget readyready forfor useuse oror sale)sale) asas partpart ofof thethe costcost ofof thatthat asset.asset. TheThe optionoption ofof

immediatelyimmediately expensingexpensing thosethose borrowingborrowing costscosts willwill bebe removed.removed. Further,Further, thethe definitiondefinition

ofof borrowingborrowing costcost hashas beenbeen amendedamended soso thatthat interestinterest expenseexpense isis calculatedcalculated usingusing thethe

effectiveeffective interestinterest methodmethod defineddefined inin IASIAS 3939 'Financial'Financial Instruments:Instruments: RecognitionRecognition andand

Measurement'.Measurement'. TheThe amendmentsamendments willwill havehave impactimpact onon thethe Company'sCompany's financialfinancial

statementsstatements toto thethe extentextent ofof borrowingborrowing costs,costs, ifif any,any, directlydirectly attributableattributable toto thethe

acquisition of or construction of qualifying assets.acquisition of or construction of qualifying assets.

IASIAS 3232 (Amendment),(Amendment), 'Financial'Financial Instruments:Instruments: PresentationPresentation andand IASIAS 11 PresentationPresentation ofof

FinancialFinancial StatementsStatements (effective(effective fromfrom 0101 January,January, 2009)2009) -- PuttablePuttable FinancialFinancial

InstrumentsInstruments andand ObligationsObligations ArisingArising onon LiquidationLiquidation requiresrequires puttableputtable instrumentsinstruments

andand instrumentsinstruments thatthat imposeimpose onon thethe entityentity anan obligationobligation toto deliverdeliver toto anotheranother partyparty aa

prorataprorata shareshare ofof thethe netnet assetsassets ofof thethe entityentity onlyonly onon liquidation,liquidation, toto bebe classifiedclassified asas

equityequity ifif certaincertain conditionsconditions areare met.met. TheseThese amendmentsamendments willwill havehave nono impactimpact onon

financial statements of the Company.financial statements of the Company.
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6.6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESSUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

6.16.1

6.26.2 Equity instrumentsEquity instruments

These are recorded at their face value.These are recorded at their face value.

6.36.3 TaxationTaxation

(a)(a) CurrentCurrent

(b)(b) DeferredDeferred

6.46.4 Foreign currency transactionsForeign currency transactions

6.56.5 Staff retirement benefitsStaff retirement benefits

6.66.6 Trade and other payablesTrade and other payables

TheThe principalprincipal accountingaccounting policiespolicies appliedapplied inin thethe preparationpreparation ofof thesethese financialfinancial

statementsstatements areare setset outout below.below. TheseThese policiespolicies havehave beenbeen consistentlyconsistently appliedapplied toto allall thethe

years presented, unless otherwise stated. years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

ProvisionProvision forfor currentcurrent taxationtaxation isis basedbased onon taxabletaxable incomeincome atat thethe currentcurrent ratesrates ofof

taxationtaxation afterafter takingtaking intointo accountaccount taxtax creditscredits andand taxtax rebatesrebates available,available, ifif

any.any.

DeferredDeferred taxtax isis recognisedrecognised usingusing thethe balancebalance sheetsheet liabilityliability methodmethod onon allall

temporarytemporary differencesdifferences betweenbetween thethe carryingcarrying amountsamounts ofof assetsassets andand liabilitiesliabilities forfor

the financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.the financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

TransactionsTransactions inin foreignforeign currenciescurrencies areare initiallyinitially recordedrecorded atat thethe ratesrates ofof exchangeexchange

rulingruling onon thethe datesdates ofof transactions.transactions. MonetaryMonetary assetsassets andand liabilitiesliabilities denominateddenominated inin

foreignforeign currenciescurrencies areare retranslatedretranslated intointo PakPak RupeesRupees atat thethe exchangeexchange ratesrates prevailingprevailing

onon thethe balancebalance sheetsheet date.date. AllAll exchangeexchange differencesdifferences areare chargedcharged toto profitprofit andand lossloss

account.account.

TheThe CompanyCompany operatesoperates anan un-fundedun-funded gratuitygratuity schemescheme forfor itsits eligibleeligible employees.employees.

ProvisionProvision forfor gratuitygratuity isis mademade annuallyannually toto covercover obligationobligation underunder thethe schemescheme inin

accordanceaccordance withwith thethe actuarialactuarial recommendations.recommendations. LatestLatest actuarialactuarial valuationvaluation waswas

conductedconducted onon 3030 June,June, 20092009 onon thethe basisbasis ofof projectedprojected unitunit creditcredit methodmethod byby anan

independent Actuary.independent Actuary.

DeferredDeferred taxtax isis chargedcharged oror creditedcredited inin thethe incomeincome statement,statement, exceptexcept inin thethe casecase

of items credited or charged to equity in which case it is included in equity.of items credited or charged to equity in which case it is included in equity.

DeferredDeferred taxtax assetsassets andand liabilitiesliabilities areare measuredmeasured atat thethe taxtax ratesrates thatthat areare

expectedexpected toto applyapply toto thethe periodperiod whenwhen thethe assetasset isis realisedrealised oror thethe liabilityliability isis

settled,settled, basedbased onon thethe taxtax ratesrates thatthat havehave beenbeen enactedenacted oror substantivelysubstantively enactedenacted

by the balance sheet date.by the balance sheet date.

DeferredDeferred taxtax assetasset isis recognisedrecognised forfor allall thethe deductibledeductible temporarytemporary differencesdifferences

onlyonly toto thethe extentextent thatthat itit isis probableprobable thatthat futurefuture taxabletaxable profitsprofits willwill bebe availableavailable

againstagainst whichwhich thethe assetasset maymay bebe utilised.utilised. DeferredDeferred taxtax assetasset isis reducedreduced toto thethe

extentextent thatthat itit isis nono longerlonger probableprobable thatthat thethe relatedrelated taxtax benefitbenefit willwill bebe realised.realised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all the taxable temporary differences.Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all the taxable temporary differences.

CreditorsCreditors relatingrelating toto tradetrade andand otherother payablespayables areare carriedcarried atat cost,cost, whichwhich isis thethe fairfair

valuevalue ofof considerationconsideration toto bebe paidpaid inin thethe futurefuture forfor goodsgoods andand servicesservices received,received,

whether or not billed to the Company.whether or not billed to the Company.
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6.76.7 Property, plant and equipment and depreciationProperty, plant and equipment and depreciation

6.86.8 Assets subject to finance leaseAssets subject to finance lease

Finance cost and depreciation on leased assets are charged to income currently.Finance cost and depreciation on leased assets are charged to income currently.

DepreciationDepreciation onon additionsadditions toto operatingoperating fixedfixed assetsassets isis chargedcharged fromfrom thethe monthmonth inin

whichwhich anan assetasset isis acquiredacquired oror capitalisedcapitalised whilewhile nono depreciationdepreciation isis chargedcharged forfor thethe

month in which the asset is disposed-off. Depreciation rates are stated in note 17.month in which the asset is disposed-off. Depreciation rates are stated in note 17.

GainGain // lossloss onon disposaldisposal ofof property,property, plantplant andand equipment,equipment, ifif any,any, isis takentaken toto profitprofit

and loss account.and loss account.

FreeholdFreehold land,land, buildingsbuildings onon freeholdfreehold landland andand plantplant && machinerymachinery werewere revaluedrevalued

duringduring thethe yearsyears 1978,1978, 19991999 andand 2004.2004. SurplusSurplus arisenarisen onon revaluationrevaluation ofof thesethese assetsassets

waswas creditedcredited toto thethe surplussurplus onon revaluationrevaluation ofof property,property, plantplant andand equipmentequipment accountaccount

inin accordanceaccordance withwith thethe requirementsrequirements ofof sectionsection 235235 ofof thethe CompaniesCompanies Ordinance,Ordinance,

19841984 andand shallshall bebe heldheld onon thethe balancebalance sheetsheet tilltill realisation.realisation. RevaluationRevaluation isis carried-carried-

outout withwith sufficientsufficient regularityregularity toto ensureensure thatthat thethe carryingcarrying amountamount ofof assetsassets doesdoes notnot

differdiffer materiallymaterially fromfrom thethe fairfair value.value. ToTo thethe extentextent ofof incrementalincremental depreciationdepreciation

chargedcharged onon thethe revaluedrevalued assets,assets, thethe relatedrelated surplussurplus onon revaluationrevaluation ofof thesethese assetsassets

(net of deferred taxation) is transferred directly to unappropriated profit.(net of deferred taxation) is transferred directly to unappropriated profit.

NormalNormal repairsrepairs andand replacementsreplacements areare takentaken toto profitprofit andand lossloss accountaccount asas andand whenwhen

incurred.incurred. MajorMajor renewalsrenewals andand replacementsreplacements areare capitalisedcapitalised andand assetsassets replaced,replaced,

if  any,  other  than those kept as stand-by, are retired.if  any,  other  than those kept as stand-by, are retired.

TheseThese areare statedstated atat costcost lessless accumulatedaccumulated depreciationdepreciation andand anyany identifiedidentified

impairmentimpairment lossloss exceptexcept forfor capitalcapital work-in-progress,work-in-progress, whichwhich isis statedstated atat cost.cost. AllAll

expenditureexpenditure connectedconnected toto thethe specificspecific assetsassets incurredincurred duringduring installationinstallation andand

constructionconstruction periodperiod areare carriedcarried underunder capitalcapital work-in-progress.work-in-progress. TheseThese areare transferredtransferred

to specific assets as and when assets are available for use.to specific assets as and when assets are available for use.

DepreciationDepreciation isis chargedcharged toto incomeincome atat thethe ratesrates statedstated inin notenote 1717 applyingapplying reducingreducing

balancebalance methodmethod toto write-offwrite-off thethe costcost ofof assetasset overover itsits estimatedestimated remainingremaining usefuluseful lifelife

in view of certainty of ownership of assets at the end of lease period.in view of certainty of ownership of assets at the end of lease period.

TheseThese areare statedstated atat thethe lowerlower ofof presentpresent valuevalue ofof minimumminimum leaselease paymentspayments underunder thethe

leaselease agreementsagreements andand thethe fairfair valuevalue ofof assets.assets. TheThe relatedrelated obligationobligation ofof leasesleases isis

accountedaccounted forfor asas liability.liability. FinanceFinance costcost isis allocatedallocated toto accountingaccounting periodsperiods inin aa

mannermanner soso asas toto provideprovide aa constantconstant periodicperiodic raterate ofof financefinance costcost onon thethe remainingremaining

balance of principal liability for each period.balance of principal liability for each period.

CostCost ofof somesome itemsitems ofof plantplant && machinerymachinery consistsconsists ofof historicalhistorical costcost andand exchangeexchange

fluctuationfluctuation effectseffects onon foreignforeign currencycurrency loansloans capitalisedcapitalised duringduring priorprior years.years.

BorrowingBorrowing costscosts areare alsoalso capitalisedcapitalised forfor thethe periodperiod uptoupto thethe datedate ofof commencementcommencement ofof

commercialcommercial productionproduction ofof thethe respectiverespective plantplant && machinery,machinery, acquiredacquired outout ofof thethe

proceeds of such borrowings.proceeds of such borrowings.

DepreciationDepreciation isis takentaken toto profitprofit andand lossloss accountaccount applyingapplying reducingreducing balancebalance methodmethod

soso asas toto write-offwrite-off thethe depreciabledepreciable amountamount ofof anan assetasset overover itsits remainingremaining usefuluseful life.life.

TheThe assets'assets' residualresidual valuesvalues andand usefuluseful liveslives areare reviewedreviewed atat eacheach financialfinancial year-endyear-end

and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.
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6.96.9 Investments in Associated CompaniesInvestments in Associated Companies

6.106.10 Stores and sparesStores and spares

6.116.11 Stock-in-tradeStock-in-trade

Basis of valuation are as follows:Basis of valuation are as follows:

ParticularsParticulars Mode of valuationMode of valuation

Raw materials:Raw materials:
- at warehouses- at warehouses -  At lower of annual average cost and net realisable value.-  At lower of annual average cost and net realisable value.
- in transit- in transit -  At cost accumulated to the balance sheet date.-  At cost accumulated to the balance sheet date.

Work-in-processWork-in-process -  At lower of cost and net realisable value.-  At lower of cost and net realisable value.

Finished goodsFinished goods -  At lower of cost and net realisable value.-  At lower of cost and net realisable value.

Usable wasteUsable waste -  At estimated realisable value.-  At estimated realisable value.

6.126.12 Trade debtsTrade debts

6.136.13 Cash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalents

These consist of cash-in-hand and balances with banks.These consist of cash-in-hand and balances with banks.

InvestmentsInvestments inin AssociatedAssociated CompaniesCompanies areare accountedaccounted forfor usingusing equityequity basisbasis ofof
accountingaccounting underunder whichwhich thethe investmentsinvestments inin AssociatedAssociated CompaniesCompanies areare initiallyinitially
recognisedrecognised atat costcost andand thethe carryingcarrying amountsamounts areare increasedincreased oror decreaseddecreased toto recogniserecognise
thethe Company'sCompany's shareshare ofof thethe profitprofit oror lossloss ofof thethe AssociatedAssociated CompaniesCompanies afterafter thethe datedate
ofof acquisition.acquisition. TheThe Company'sCompany's shareshare ofof thethe profitprofit oror lossloss ofof thethe AssociatedAssociated CompaniesCompanies
isis recognisedrecognised inin thethe Company'sCompany's profitprofit oror loss.loss. DistributionsDistributions receivedreceived fromfrom AssociatedAssociated
CompaniesCompanies reducereduce thethe carryingcarrying amountamount ofof thethe investments.investments. AdjustmentsAdjustments toto thethe
carryingcarrying amountsamounts areare alsoalso mademade forfor changeschanges inin thethe Company'sCompany's proportionateproportionate interestinterest
inin thethe AssociatedAssociated CompaniesCompanies arisingarising fromfrom changeschanges inin thethe AssociatedAssociated Companies'Companies'
equityequity thatthat havehave notnot beenbeen recognisedrecognised inin thethe AssociatedAssociated Companies'Companies' profitprofit oror loss.loss. TheThe
Company's share of those changes is recognised directly in equity of the Company.Company's share of those changes is recognised directly in equity of the Company.

TheThe carryingcarrying amountamount ofof thethe investmentinvestment isis testedtested forfor impairmentimpairment byby comparingcomparing itsits
recoverablerecoverable amountamount (higher(higher ofof valuevalue inin useuse andand fairfair valuevalue lessless costcost toto sell)sell) withwith itsits
carrying amount and loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.carrying amount and loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.

CostCost inin relationrelation toto work-in-processwork-in-process andand finishedfinished goodsgoods representsrepresents annualannual averageaverage
manufacturingmanufacturing costcost whichwhich consistsconsists ofof primeprime costcost andand appropriateappropriate manufacturingmanufacturing
overheads.overheads.

TradeTrade debtsdebts areare carriedcarried atat originaloriginal invoiceinvoice amountamount lessless anan estimateestimate forfor doubtfuldoubtful debtsdebts
basedbased onon reviewreview ofof outstandingoutstanding amountsamounts atat thethe year-end.year-end. BadBad debtsdebts areare written-offwritten-off
when identified.when identified.

NetNet realisablerealisable valuevalue signifiessignifies thethe estimatedestimated sellingselling priceprice inin thethe ordinaryordinary coursecourse ofof

business less cost necessary to be incurred to bring the goods in saleable form.business less cost necessary to be incurred to bring the goods in saleable form.

TheseThese areare valuedvalued atat movingmoving averageaverage costcost exceptexcept items-in-transit,items-in-transit, whichwhich areare valuedvalued atat
cost accumulated to the balance sheet date.cost accumulated to the balance sheet date.
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6.146.14 ImpairmentImpairment

6.156.15 Revenue recognitionRevenue recognition

- Sales are recorded on dispatch of goods.- Sales are recorded on dispatch of goods.

- Return on deposits is accounted for on 'accrual basis'.- Return on deposits is accounted for on 'accrual basis'.

- Dividend income is recognised when the right of receipt is established.- Dividend income is recognised when the right of receipt is established.

6.166.16 Borrowings and borrowing costsBorrowings and borrowing costs

6.176.17 ProvisionsProvisions

6.186.18 Financial assets and liabilitiesFinancial assets and liabilities

6.196.19 Off-setting of financial instrumentsOff-setting of financial instruments

6.206.20 Related party transactionsRelated party transactions

6.216.21 Dividend and appropriation to reservesDividend and appropriation to reserves

DividendDividend distributiondistribution toto thethe Company'sCompany's shareholdersshareholders andand appropriationappropriation toto reservesreserves

are recognised in the period in which these are approved.are recognised in the period in which these are approved.

FinancialFinancial assetsassets andand liabilitiesliabilities areare off-setoff-set andand thethe netnet amountamount reportedreported inin thethe balancebalance

sheetsheet whenwhen therethere isis aa legallylegally enforceableenforceable rightright toto set-offset-off thethe recognisedrecognised amountsamounts andand

therethere isis anan intentionintention toto settlesettle onon aa netnet basis,basis, oror realiserealise thethe assetasset andand settlesettle thethe

liability simultaneously.liability simultaneously.

FinancialFinancial assetsassets andand financialfinancial liabilitiesliabilities areare recognisedrecognised whenwhen thethe CompanyCompany becomesbecomes

aa partyparty toto thethe contractualcontractual provisionsprovisions ofof thethe instrumentinstrument andand derecognisedderecognised whenwhen thethe
CompanyCompany losesloses controlcontrol ofof contractualcontractual rightsrights thatthat comprisecomprise thethe financialfinancial assetsassets andand inin

thethe casecase ofof financialfinancial liabilitiesliabilities whenwhen thethe obligationobligation specifiedspecified inin thethe contractcontract isis

discharged,discharged, cancelledcancelled oror expired.expired. AnyAny gaingain oror lossloss onon derecognitionderecognition ofof financialfinancial assetsassets

andand financialfinancial liabilitiesliabilities areare includedincluded inin thethe profitprofit andand lossloss forfor thethe year.year. AllAll financialfinancial

assetsassets andand financialfinancial liabilitiesliabilities areare initiallyinitially measuredmeasured atat cost,cost, whichwhich isis thethe fairfair valuevalue ofof

thethe considerationconsideration givengiven andand receivedreceived respectively.respectively. TheseThese financialfinancial assetsassets andand

liabilitiesliabilities areare subsequentlysubsequently measuredmeasured atat fairfair value,value, amortisedamortised costcost oror cost,cost, asas thethe

case may be.case may be.

ProvisionsProvisions areare recognisedrecognised whenwhen thethe CompanyCompany hashas aa presentpresent legallegal oror constructiveconstructive

obligationobligation asas aa resultresult ofof pastpast eventsevents andand itit isis probableprobable thatthat anan outflowoutflow ofof resourcesresources

embodyingembodying economiceconomic benefitsbenefits willwill bebe requiredrequired toto settlesettle thethe obligationobligation andand aa reliablereliable

estimateestimate ofof thethe obligationobligation cancan bebe made.made. ProvisionsProvisions areare reviewedreviewed atat eacheach balancebalance

sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

AllAll borrowingsborrowings areare recordedrecorded atat thethe proceedsproceeds received.received. BorrowingBorrowing costscosts directlydirectly

attributableattributable toto thethe acquisition,acquisition, constructionconstruction oror productionproduction ofof qualifyingqualifying assets,assets, whichwhich

areare assetsassets thatthat necessarilynecessarily taketake aa substantialsubstantial periodperiod ofof timetime toto getget readyready forfor theirtheir

intendedintended useuse areare addedadded toto thethe costcost ofof thosethose assets,assets, untiluntil suchsuch timetime asas thethe assetsassets areare

substantiallysubstantially readyready forfor theirtheir intendedintended use.use. AllAll otherother borrowingborrowing costscosts areare chargedcharged toto

income in the period in which these are incurred.income in the period in which these are incurred.

TheThe carryingcarrying amountsamounts ofof thethe Company'sCompany's assetsassets areare reviewedreviewed atat eacheach balancebalance sheetsheet
datedate toto determinedetermine whetherwhether therethere isis anyany indicationindication ofof impairmentimpairment loss.loss. IfIf anyany suchsuch

indicationindication exists,exists, thethe recoverablerecoverable amountamount ofof thethe assetsassets isis estimatedestimated inin orderorder toto

determinedetermine thethe extentextent ofof impairmentimpairment loss,loss, ifif any.any. ImpairmentImpairment losseslosses areare recognisedrecognised asas

expense in the profit and loss account.expense in the profit and loss account.

Sales,Sales, purchasespurchases andand otherother transactionstransactions withwith relatedrelated partiesparties areare mademade atat arm'sarm's

lengthlength pricesprices determineddetermined inin accordanceaccordance withwith thethe comparablecomparable uncontrolleduncontrolled priceprice

methodmethod exceptexcept forfor thethe allocationallocation ofof expensesexpenses relatingrelating toto combinedcombined officesoffices sharedshared withwith

the associates, which are on the actual basis.the associates, which are on the actual basis.



31 Bannu Woollen Mills Limited

Annual Report 2009

7.7. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITALISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL 20092009 20082008

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each issued for cashOrdinary shares of Rs.10 each issued for cash 22,59422,594 22,59422,594

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each issued as bonus sharesOrdinary shares of Rs.10 each issued as bonus shares 53,45653,456 53,45653,456

76,05076,050 76,05076,050

7.17.1 Shares held by the Associated CompaniesShares held by the Associated Companies 20092009 20082008

 at the year-end: at the year-end:

- Janana De Malucho Textile Mills Ltd.- Janana De Malucho Textile Mills Ltd. 585,301585,301 585,301585,301

- Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Ltd.- Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Ltd. 1,996,1701,996,170 1,996,1701,996,170

- The Universal Insurance Company Ltd.- The Universal Insurance Company Ltd. 7,1527,152 7,1527,152

2,588,6232,588,623 2,588,6232,588,623

8.8. RESERVESRESERVES 20092009 20082008

Capital Capital 

Share premium reserve:Share premium reserve:

859,375 shares @ Rs.7.50 per share859,375 shares @ Rs.7.50 per share

issued during the financial year 1991-92issued during the financial year 1991-92 6,4456,445 6,4456,445

650,000 right shares @ Rs.20.00 per share650,000 right shares @ Rs.20.00 per share

issued during the financial year 1993-94issued during the financial year 1993-94 13,00013,000 13,00013,000

19,44519,445 19,44519,445

RevenueRevenue

General reserveGeneral reserve 117,955117,955 117,955117,955

137,400137,400 137,400137,400

9.9. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTSURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Opening balanceOpening balance 243,309243,309 245,850245,850

Less:Less: transferred to unappropriated profit on account of:transferred to unappropriated profit on account of:

- incremental depreciation for the year - net of - incremental depreciation for the year - net of 

deferred taxationdeferred taxation (2,273)(2,273) (2,394)(2,394)

- surplus realised on disposal of revalued assets - net of - surplus realised on disposal of revalued assets - net of 

deferred taxationdeferred taxation (9)(9) (147)(147)

Closing balanceClosing balance 241,027241,027 243,309243,309

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

5,345,6255,345,625

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

7,605,0007,605,000

2,259,3752,259,375

ThisThis representsrepresents surplussurplus overover bookbook valuesvalues resultedresulted fromfrom thethe revaluationsrevaluations ofof freeholdfreehold land,land,

buildingsbuildings onon freeholdfreehold landland andand plantplant && machinerymachinery duringduring thethe yearsyears 1978,1978, 19991999 andand 20042004

adjustedadjusted onlyonly byby surplussurplus realisedrealised onon disposaldisposal ofof revaluedrevalued assets,assets, incrementalincremental depreciationdepreciation

arisingarising outout ofof revaluationrevaluation andand deferreddeferred taxation.taxation. TheThe year-endyear-end balancebalance hashas beenbeen arrivedarrived atat

as follows: as follows: 

Numbers of sharesNumbers of shares
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10.10. LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE - Secured- Secured

11.11. STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS - Gratuity- Gratuity

20092009 20082008

- discount rate- discount rate 12%12% 9%9%

- expected rate of growth per annum in future salaries- expected rate of growth per annum in future salaries 11%11% 8%8%

- average expected remaining working life time of employees- average expected remaining working life time of employees 11 years11 years 13 years13 years

20092009 20082008
The amount recognised in the balance sheet The amount recognised in the balance sheet (Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

is as follows:is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligationPresent value of defined benefit obligation 31,47431,474 15,21415,214

Unrecognised actuarial lossUnrecognised actuarial loss (11,684)(11,684) (3,743)(3,743)

Net liability as at 30 June,Net liability as at 30 June, 19,79019,790 11,47111,471

Opening balanceOpening balance 11,47111,471 11,40611,406

Charge to profit and loss accountCharge to profit and loss account 11,59111,591 3,7383,738

Payments during the yearPayments during the year (3,272)(3,272) (3,673)(3,673)

Net liability as at 30 June,Net liability as at 30 June, 19,79019,790 11,47111,471

TheThe CompanyCompany hashas enteredentered intointo leaselease agreementsagreements withwith FirstFirst HabibHabib ModarabaModaraba andand ORIXORIX
LeasingLeasing PakistanPakistan Ltd.Ltd. forfor leaselease ofof vehicles.vehicles. TheThe liabilitiesliabilities underunder thesethese agreementsagreements areare
payablepayable byby October,October, 20112011 and,and, duringduring thethe year,year, werewere subjectsubject toto financefinance costcost atat thethe ratesrates
rangingranging fromfrom 15.86%15.86% toto 21.20%21.20% (2008:(2008: 14.00%14.00% toto 15.86%)15.86%) perper annum.annum. TheThe CompanyCompany
intendsintends toto exerciseexercise itsits optionoption toto purchasepurchase thethe leasedleased vehiclesvehicles uponupon completioncompletion ofof thethe
respectiverespective leaselease terms.terms. TheseThese leaselease financefinance facilitiesfacilities areare securedsecured againstagainst titletitle ofof thethe leasedleased
vehicles in the name of lessors.vehicles in the name of lessors.

TheThe futurefuture contributioncontribution ratesrates ofof thisthis schemescheme includeinclude allowanceallowance forfor deficitdeficit andand surplus.surplus.
Projected unit credit method, based on the following significant assumptions, is used for 
valuation 
Projected unit credit method, based on the following significant assumptions, is used for 
valuation 

Minimum lease paymentsMinimum lease payments 2,2742,274 2,3222,322 4,5964,596 2,5782,578 2,6922,692 5,2705,270

Less: finance cost allocatedLess: finance cost allocated

to future periodsto future periods 489489 216216 705705 400400 262262 662662

1,7851,785 2,1062,106 3,8913,891 2,1782,178 2,4302,430 4,6084,608

Less: security deposits adjustableLess: security deposits adjustable

on expiry of lease termson expiry of lease terms 230230 317317 547547 317317 547547 864864

Present value of minimum lease Present value of minimum lease 

paymentspayments 1,5551,555 1,7891,789 3,3443,344 1,8611,861 1,8831,883 3,7443,744

ParticularsParticulars

20092009 20082008

TotalTotal

--------------- Rupees in thousand------------------------------ Rupees in thousand---------------

Upto Upto 

one one 

yearyear

Upto Upto 

one one 

yearyear

From From 

one to one to 

five five 

yearsyears

From From 

one to one to 

five five 

yearsyears

TotalTotal
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The movement in the present value of defined benefit The movement in the present value of defined benefit 20092009 20082008

obligation is as follows:obligation is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligationPresent value of defined benefit obligation 15,21415,214 15,33315,333

Current service costCurrent service cost 10,00010,000 2,1742,174

Interest costInterest cost 1,3691,369 1,3801,380

Benefits paidBenefits paid (3,272)(3,272) (3,673)(3,673)
Actuarial lossActuarial loss 8,1638,163 00

Present value of defined benefit obligationPresent value of defined benefit obligation 31,47431,474 15,21415,214

12.12. DEFERRED TAXATION DEFERRED TAXATION - Net- Net 20092009 20082008

This is composed of the following:This is composed of the following:

Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of: Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of: 

- accelerated tax depreciation allowance- accelerated tax depreciation allowance 37,56237,562              29,51829,518                

- surplus on revaluation of property, plant & equipment- surplus on revaluation of property, plant & equipment 23,25123,251              24,47924,479                

- lease finances - lease finances 697697                        851851                          

Deductible temporary difference arising in respect of provisionDeductible temporary difference arising in respect of provision
 against slow moving stores and spares against slow moving stores and spares (175)(175)                      (175)(175)                        

61,33561,335              54,67354,673                
13.13. SHORT TERM FINANCES SHORT TERM FINANCES - Secured- Secured

These facilities are available upto 30 September, 2009.These facilities are available upto 30 September, 2009.

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

ComparisonComparison ofof presentpresent valuevalue ofof defineddefined benefitbenefit obligationobligation andand experienceexperience adjustmentadjustment onon
obligation for five years is as follows:obligation for five years is as follows:

TheThe Company'sCompany's policypolicy withwith regardregard toto actuarialactuarial gainsgains // losseslosses isis toto followfollow thethe minimumminimum
recommended approach under IAS 19  (Employee Benefits).recommended approach under IAS 19  (Employee Benefits).

FacilitiesFacilities availableavailable forfor openingopening lettersletters ofof creditcredit aggregateaggregate Rs.50Rs.50 millionmillion (2008:(2008: Rs.50Rs.50 million)million)
and are secured against the securities as detailed above.and are secured against the securities as detailed above.

ShortShort termterm financefinance facilitiesfacilities availableavailable fromfrom NationalNational BankBank ofof PakistanPakistan (NBP)(NBP) underunder mark-upmark-up
arrangementsarrangements aggregateaggregate Rs.140Rs.140 millionmillion (2008:(2008: Rs.140Rs.140 million).million). NBP,NBP, duringduring thethe year,year,
chargedcharged mark-upmark-up onon thesethese financefinance facilitiesfacilities atat thethe ratesrates rangingranging fromfrom 11.82%11.82% toto 16.52%16.52%
(2008:(2008: 11.47%11.47% toto 11.89%)11.89%) perper annum;annum; mark-upmark-up isis payablepayable onon quarterlyquarterly basis.basis. TheThe aggregateaggregate
facilities are secured against first charge on fixed assets for Rs.160 million.facilities are secured against first charge on fixed assets for Rs.160 million.

20092009 20082008 20072007 20062006 20052005

Present value of defined benefit Present value of defined benefit 
obligationobligation 31,47431,474 15,21415,214 15,33315,333 14,08514,085 13,90013,900

Experience adjustment on Experience adjustment on 
obligationobligation 8,1638,163 00 00 5252 00

----------------- Rupees in thousand ---------------------------------- Rupees in thousand -----------------
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14.14. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLESTRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20092009 20082008

NoteNote

Due to Associated CompaniesDue to Associated Companies 583583 1,3981,398

CreditorsCreditors 10,64310,643 9,5659,565

Bills payable against imported raw materials - securedBills payable against imported raw materials - secured 11,30911,309 8,8428,842

Advances from customersAdvances from customers 2,0642,064 970970

Security deposits - interest free, repayable on demandSecurity deposits - interest free, repayable on demand 1,8001,800 2,0002,000

Accrued expensesAccrued expenses 13,07713,077 8,3238,323

Workers' (profit) participation fund Workers' (profit) participation fund 14.114.1 2,3492,349 2,5622,562

Waqf-e-Kuli KhanWaqf-e-Kuli Khan 31.131.1 2,1522,152 1,1361,136

Income tax deducted at sourceIncome tax deducted at source 2727 3535

Workers' welfare fundWorkers' welfare fund 829829 931931

Unclaimed dividendsUnclaimed dividends 1,3481,348 1,3481,348

OthersOthers 7979 5353

46,26046,260 37,16337,163

14.114.1 Workers' (profit) participation fund - Workers' (profit) participation fund - (the Fund)(the Fund)

Opening balanceOpening balance 2,5622,562 2,3882,388

Add: interest on funds utilised in the Company's businessAdd: interest on funds utilised in the Company's business 7777 228228

2,6392,639 2,6162,616

Less: payments made to Trustees of the FundLess: payments made to Trustees of the Fund 2,4732,473 2,4942,494

166166 122122

Allocation for the yearAllocation for the year 2,1832,183 2,4402,440

2,3492,349 2,5622,562

15.15. TAXATION TAXATION - Net- Net

Opening balanceOpening balance 16,30016,300 14,84014,840

Add: provision made during the year for :Add: provision made during the year for :
- current year- current year 8,2358,235 16,30016,300

- prior years'- prior years' 7979 135135

8,3148,314 16,43516,435

24,61424,614 31,27531,275

Less:Less: adjustments against completed assessmentsadjustments against completed assessments 16,37916,379 14,97514,975

8,2358,235 16,30016,300

15.115.1

15.215.2

15.315.3

IncomeIncome taxtax assessmentsassessments ofof thethe CompanyCompany havehave beenbeen completedcompleted uptoupto thethe TaxTax YearYear
2008; the return for the said year has not been taken-up for audit till 30 June, 2009.2008; the return for the said year has not been taken-up for audit till 30 June, 2009.

TheThe CompanyCompany hadhad filedfiled aa ReferenceReference ApplicationApplication beforebefore thethe LahoreLahore HighHigh CourtCourt againstagainst

thethe ordersorders ofof thethe IncomeIncome TaxTax AppellateAppellate TribunalTribunal forfor set-asidingset-asiding thethe decisionsdecisions forfor thethe
AssessmentAssessment YearsYears 1986-871986-87 toto 1988-89;1988-89; however,however, nono additionaladditional taxtax liabilityliability isis likelylikely toto
arise in case of an adverse judgment by the Court.arise in case of an adverse judgment by the Court.

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

TheThe IncomeIncome TaxTax DepartmentDepartment hashas issuedissued amendedamended assessmentassessment orderorder underunder sectionsection
122(5A)122(5A) ofof thethe IncomeIncome TaxTax Ordinance,Ordinance, 20012001 raisingraising taxtax demandsdemands amountingamounting
Rs.1.781 million against which appeal has been filed, which is pending adjudication.Rs.1.781 million against which appeal has been filed, which is pending adjudication.
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15.4 Relationship between tax expense and 2009 2008

accounting profit

Accounting profit before tax 9,709 43,669

Tax at the applicable rate of 35% 3,398 15,284
Tax effect of permanent differences (5,988) 804
Tax effect of share of loss and impairment 

loss on investments in Associated Companies 10,462 212
Deferred tax 6,662 (224)
Prior years' current tax charge 79 135
Others 363 0

Tax charge for the current year 14,976 16,211

16. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

16.1 Refer contents of note 15.3.

16.2 Commitments against irrevocable letters
  of credit for raw materials 19,579 16,457

(Rupees in thousand)
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LeasedLeased

As at 30 June, 2007As at 30 June, 2007

CostCost 198,000198,000 24,39024,390 7,5147,514 17,20117,201 356,564356,564 464464 1515 596596 2,5402,540 375375 960960 9,1869,186 6060 5,8585,858 623,723623,723

Accumulated Accumulated 
depreciationdepreciation 00 11,52811,528 3,3953,395 4,3334,333 170,014170,014 339339 1212 326326 1,7871,787 273273 787787 5,8955,895 3636 1,4551,455 200,180200,180

Book valueBook value 198,000198,000 12,86212,862 4,1194,119 12,86812,868 186,550186,550 125125 33 270270 753753 102102 173173 3,2913,291 2424 4,4034,403 423,543423,543

Year ended Year ended 

30 June, 2008:30 June, 2008:

AdditionsAdditions 00 502502 00 353353 447447 00 00 1515 00 00 00 2,9002,900 00 3,3183,318 7,5357,535

Disposals:Disposals:

costcost 00 00 00 00 (1,315)(1,315) 00 00 (21)(21) (8)(8) 00 (6)(6) (257)(257) 00 00 (1,607)(1,607)

depreciationdepreciation 00 00 00 00 861861 00 00 1818 66 00 55 237237 00 00 1,1271,127

00 00 00 00 (454)(454) 00 00 (3)(3) (2)(2) 00 (1)(1) (20)(20) 00 00 (480)(480)

198,000198,000 13,36413,364 4,1194,119 13,22113,221 186,543186,543 125125 33 282282 751751 102102 172172 6,1716,171 2424 7,7217,721 430,598430,598

Depreciation Depreciation 
chargecharge 00 652652 206206 655655 9,3139,313 66 00 1414 3737 55 5252 1,2031,203 11 1,5451,545 13,68913,689

Net book value asNet book value as

at June 30, 2008at June 30, 2008 198,000198,000 12,71212,712 3,9133,913 12,56612,566 177,230177,230 119119 33 268268 714714 9797 120120 4,9684,968 2323 6,1766,176 416,909416,909

Year ended Year ended 

30 June, 2009:30 June, 2009:

AdditionsAdditions 00 00 00 300300 31,45031,450 00 00 00 3,2693,269 3333 2929 00 00 2,6142,614 37,69537,695

TransfersTransfers 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 1,9581,958 00 (1,958)(1,958) 00

Disposals:Disposals:

costcost 00 00 00 00 (35)(35) 00 00 00 00 (23)(23) (21)(21) (1,789)(1,789) 00 00 (1,868)(1,868)

depreciationdepreciation 00 00 00 00 2222 00 00 00 00 1717 2020 1,5251,525 00 00 1,5841,584

00 00 00 00 (13)(13) 00 00 00 00 (6)(6) (1)(1) (264)(264) 00 00 (284)(284)

198,000198,000 12,71212,712 3,9133,913 12,86612,866 208,667208,667 119119 33 268268 3,9833,983 124124 148148 6,6626,662 2323 6,8326,832 454,320454,320

Depreciation Depreciation 
chargecharge 00 636636 196196 629629 8,9928,992 66 00 1313 198198 66 3939 1,2321,232 11 1,4971,497 13,44513,445

Net book value asNet book value as

at June 30, 2009at June 30, 2009 198,000198,000 12,07612,076 3,7173,717 12,23712,237 199,675199,675 113113 33 255255 3,7853,785 118118 109109 5,4305,430 2222 5,3355,335 440,875440,875

As at 30 June, 2008As at 30 June, 2008

Cost Cost 198,000198,000 24,89224,892 7,5147,514 17,55417,554 355,696355,696 464464 1515 590590 2,5322,532 375375 954954 11,82911,829 6060 9,1769,176 629,651629,651

Accumulated Accumulated 
depreciationdepreciation 00 12,18012,180 3,6013,601 4,9884,988 178,466178,466 345345 1212 322322 1,8181,818 278278 834834 6,8616,861 3737 3,0003,000 212,742212,742

Book valueBook value 198,000198,000 12,71212,712 3,9133,913 12,56612,566 177,230177,230 119119 33 268268 714714 9797 120120 4,9684,968 2323 6,1766,176 416,909416,909

As at 30 June, 2009As at 30 June, 2009

Cost Cost 198,000198,000 24,89224,892 7,5147,514 17,85417,854 387,111387,111 464464 1515 590590 5,8015,801 385385 962962 13,50413,504 6060 8,3268,326 665,478665,478

Accumulated Accumulated 
depreciationdepreciation 00 12,81612,816 3,7973,797 5,6175,617 187,436187,436 351351 1212 335335 2,0162,016 267267 853853 8,0748,074 3838 2,9912,991 224,603224,603

Book valueBook value 198,000198,000 12,07612,076 3,7173,717 12,23712,237 199,675199,675 113113 33 255255 3,7853,785 118118 109109 5,4305,430 2222 5,3355,335 440,875440,875

Depreciation Depreciation 
rate (%)rate (%) 00 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 3030 2020 55 2020                        

OthersOthers

Plant &Plant &

machinerymachinery

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ Rupees in thousand ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ Rupees in thousand ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

TotalTotal

OwnedOwned

FactoryFactory

Buildings on freehold landBuildings on freehold land

ResidentialResidential

Freehold Freehold 

LandLand
VehiclesVehiclesArmsArmsVehiclesVehiclesComputersComputers

Office Office 

equipmentequipment

Electric Electric 

fittingsfittings

Furniture Furniture 

and and 

fixturesfixtures

Tools and Tools and 

EquipmentEquipment

Weighment Weighment 

and and 

material material 

handling handling 

equipmentequipment

17. OPERATING FIXED ASSETS
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Plant & machineryPlant & machinery

Lathe machineLathe machine 3535                            2222                                    1313        3535 2222 Muhammad Jamal Shah,Muhammad Jamal Shah,

Village Dirmakhel,Village Dirmakhel,

Peepal Bazar, Daud Shah,Bannu.Peepal Bazar, Daud Shah,Bannu.

Office equipmentOffice equipment

Telephone exchangeTelephone exchange 2323                            1717                                    66            11 (5)(5)

ComputerComputer

Two monitorsTwo monitors 2121                            2020                                    11            11 00 Al-Syed Brothers,Al-Syed Brothers,

48-Cilicon Centre, University Road,48-Cilicon Centre, University Road,

Peshawar.Peshawar.
VehiclesVehicles

Nissan SunnyNissan Sunny 796796                          686686                                110110    425425                315315      Ch. Muhammad Ashraf Randhawa,Ch. Muhammad Ashraf Randhawa,

Advocate, H # P-195, Street # 6,Advocate, H # P-195, Street # 6,

Khalidabad, Faisalabad.Khalidabad, Faisalabad.

Nissan SunnyNissan Sunny 993993                          839839                                154154    350350                196196      Mr. Akhtar Shah, Contractor,Mr. Akhtar Shah, Contractor,

Charkhana Road,Charkhana Road,

Nothia Jadeed, Peshawar.Nothia Jadeed, Peshawar.

1,7891,789                    1,5251,525                          264264    775775                511511      

1,8681,868                    1,5841,584                          284284    812812                528528      

-do--do-

Sold through advertisement to:Sold through advertisement to:

 --------------------- Rupees in thousand --------------------- --------------------- Rupees in thousand ---------------------

ParticularsParticulars
Cost / Cost / 

revaluationrevaluation

Sale Sale 

proceeds proceeds 

Gain Gain 

//

 (loss) (loss)

Accumulated Accumulated 

depreciationdepreciation

BookBook

valuevalue

17.117.1

17.217.2 Depreciation for the year has beenDepreciation for the year has been 20092009 20082008
 apportioned as under: apportioned as under:

Cost of salesCost of sales 9,8319,831 9,9979,997

Administrative expensesAdministrative expenses 3,6143,614 3,6923,692

13,44513,445 13,68913,689

17.317.3 Disposal of operating fixed assetsDisposal of operating fixed assets

18.18. CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESSCAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS 20092009 20082008

NoteNote

Plant and machineryPlant and machinery 18.118.1 32,35632,356 00

Advance payments against:Advance payments against:
- electric fittings- electric fittings 00 2,2652,265

- buildings- buildings 824824 00

824824 2,2652,265

33,18033,180 2,2652,265

18.118.1

TheThe management,management, duringduring thethe precedingpreceding year,year, inin orderorder toto ascertainascertain thethe usefuluseful lifelife ofof
operatingoperating fixedfixed assetsassets carried-outcarried-out anan internalinternal exerciseexercise andand assessedassessed thethe remainingremaining
usefuluseful lifelife ofof depreciabledepreciable assetsassets otherother thanthan computerscomputers andand vehicles.vehicles. KeepingKeeping inin
considerationconsideration thethe assessedassessed usefuluseful lifelife ofof thesethese assets,assets, thethe depreciationdepreciation ratesrates ofof
depreciabledepreciable assetsassets werewere foundfound excessiveexcessive andand consequentlyconsequently depreciationdepreciation ratesrates werewere
reducedreduced toto 5%5% fromfrom 10%.10%. TheThe management,management, inin thisthis regard,regard, hadhad alsoalso obtainedobtained opinionopinion
fromfrom independentindependent ValuersValuers [M/s[M/s DimenDimen AssociatesAssociates (Pvt.)(Pvt.) Ltd.,Ltd., approvedapproved ValuersValuers ofof
PakistanPakistan BanksBanks Association];Association]; thethe ValuersValuers hadhad confirmedconfirmed thethe depreciationdepreciation ratesrates
adopted by the management.adopted by the management.

TheThe balancebalance includesincludes borrowingborrowing costcost amountingamounting Rs.2.593Rs.2.593 million;million; thethe borrowingborrowing costcost
rates have been disclosed in note 13.rates have been disclosed in note 13.

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)
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19.19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES - Quoted- Quoted 20092009 20082008

Babri Cotton Mills Ltd. (BCM) Babri Cotton Mills Ltd. (BCM) 

125,584 (2008: 125,584) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each - 125,584 (2008: 125,584) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each - costcost 1,6321,632 1,6321,632
Equity held 4.34% (2008: 4.34%)Equity held 4.34% (2008: 4.34%)

Post acquisition profit brought forwardPost acquisition profit brought forward
including effect of items directly creditedincluding effect of items directly credited
in equity by the Associated Companyin equity by the Associated Company 2,8092,809 3,8133,813

Loss for the year - net of taxationLoss for the year - net of taxation (2,683)(2,683) (1,298)(1,298)

1,7581,758 4,1474,147
Janana De Malucho Textile Mills Ltd. (JDM)  Janana De Malucho Textile Mills Ltd. (JDM)  

418,330 (2008: 418,330) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each - 418,330 (2008: 418,330) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each - costcost 4,9444,944 4,9444,944
Equity held 13.22% (2008: 13.22%)Equity held 13.22% (2008: 13.22%)

Post acquisition profit brought forwardPost acquisition profit brought forward
including effect of items directly creditedincluding effect of items directly credited
in equity by the Associated Companyin equity by the Associated Company 23,88723,887 21,71021,710

(Loss) / profit for the year - net of taxation(Loss) / profit for the year - net of taxation (11,668)(11,668) 694694

17,16317,163 27,34827,348

18,92118,921 31,49531,495

Less: impairment lossLess: impairment loss 15,54115,541 00

3,3803,380 31,49531,495

19.119.1

19.219.2

19.319.3

- equity as at 30 June,- equity as at 30 June, 28,72428,724 95,64095,640

- total assets as at 30 June,- total assets as at 30 June, 1,364,7171,364,717 1,180,0361,180,036

- total liabilities as at 30 June,- total liabilities as at 30 June, 886,518886,518 866,057866,057

- revenue for the year ended 30 June, - revenue for the year ended 30 June, 746,961746,961 739,868739,868

- loss after taxation for the year ended 30 June,- loss after taxation for the year ended 30 June, 73,68373,683 29,92629,926

19.419.4

- equity as at 30 June,- equity as at 30 June, 108,276108,276 206,936206,936

- total assets as at 30 June,- total assets as at 30 June, 1,977,2231,977,223 2,128,6852,128,685

- total liabilities as at 30 June,- total liabilities as at 30 June, 1,184,5161,184,516 1,227,5981,227,598

- revenue for the year ended 30 June, - revenue for the year ended 30 June, 1,071,7381,071,738 1,130,6111,130,611

- (loss) / profit after taxation for the year ended 30 June,- (loss) / profit after taxation for the year ended 30 June, (109,886)(109,886) 5,2485,248

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

FairFair valuevalue ofof investmentsinvestments inin BCMBCM asas atat 3030 June,June, 20092009 waswas Rs.0.703Rs.0.703 millionmillion

(2008: Rs.2.888 million).(2008: Rs.2.888 million).

SummarisedSummarised financialfinancial informationinformation ofof JDM,JDM, basedbased onon thethe financialfinancial statementsstatements forfor thethe
year ended 30 June, 2009, is as follows:year ended 30 June, 2009, is as follows:

FairFair valuevalue ofof investmentsinvestments inin JDMJDM asas atat 3030 June,June, 20092009 waswas Rs.2.677Rs.2.677 millionmillion
(2008: Rs.30.120 million).(2008: Rs.30.120 million).

SummarisedSummarised financialfinancial informationinformation ofof BCM,BCM, basedbased onon thethe financialfinancial statementsstatements forfor thethe
year ended 30 June, 2009, is as follows:year ended 30 June, 2009, is as follows:
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20.20. DEPOSIT FOR SHARESDEPOSIT FOR SHARES

20.120.1

20.220.2

21.21. STORES AND SPARESSTORES AND SPARES 20092009 20082008

NoteNote

StoresStores 6,3636,363 5,3785,378

SparesSpares 14,44114,441 14,29914,299

21.121.1 20,80420,804 19,67719,677

Less:Less: provision against slow moving stores and sparesprovision against slow moving stores and spares 500500 500500

20,30420,304 19,17719,177

21.121.1

21.221.2 The Company does not hold any stores and spares for specific capitalisation.The Company does not hold any stores and spares for specific capitalisation.

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

TheThe SECP,SECP, subsequentsubsequent toto balancebalance sheetsheet datedate videvide orderorder dateddated 2929 July,July, 2009,2009, hashas
acceptedaccepted thethe reviewreview applicationapplication filedfiled byby thethe CompanyCompany andand directeddirected thatthat delaydelay inin
issuanceissuance ofof sharesshares bebe compensatedcompensated byby issuingissuing moremore sharesshares ofof thethe samesame amountamount
depositeddeposited withwith JDM.JDM. Accordingly,Accordingly, JDMJDM isis makingmaking necessarynecessary arrangementsarrangements forfor
issuingissuing 1,140,0001,140,000 ordinaryordinary sharesshares toto thethe CompanyCompany atat aa priceprice ofof Rs.20/-Rs.20/- perper shareshare oror
atat aa priceprice toto bebe approvedapproved byby thethe SECP.SECP. TheseThese sharesshares willwill bebe issuedissued underunder sectionsection
86(1)86(1) ofof thethe CompaniesCompanies Ordinance,Ordinance, 19841984 otherwiseotherwise thanthan rightright andand shallshall rankrank paripari
passu in all respects with the existing shares of JDM.passu in all respects with the existing shares of JDM.

ThisThis depositdeposit forfor sharesshares amountingamounting Rs.22.818Rs.22.818 millionmillion waswas advancedadvanced toto JananaJanana DeDe
MaluchoMalucho TextileTextile MillsMills LimitedLimited -- JDMJDM (an(an AssociatedAssociated Company)Company) duringduring thethe financialfinancial
yearyear endedended 3030 June,June, 20072007 forfor issueissue ofof rightright shares.shares. TheThe saidsaid rightright issueissue waswas
subsequentlysubsequently withdrawnwithdrawn // cancelledcancelled byby thethe shareholdersshareholders ofof JDMJDM inin theirtheir annualannual
generalgeneral meetingmeeting heldheld onon 3131 October,October, 20072007 asas JDMJDM waswas unableunable toto havehave thethe issueissue
underwrittenunderwritten byby financialfinancial institutionsinstitutions asas perper thethe requirementsrequirements ofof thethe CompaniesCompanies
(Issue of Capital) Rules, 1996.(Issue of Capital) Rules, 1996.

JDM'sJDM's boardboard ofof directors,directors, inin theirtheir meetingmeeting heldheld onon 2929 February,February, 2008,2008, hadhad proposedproposed
toto issueissue sharesshares toto thethe CompanyCompany asas otherwiseotherwise thanthan rightright atat aa priceprice ofof Rs.30/-Rs.30/- perper
share against the deposit for shares already lying with JDM.share against the deposit for shares already lying with JDM.

JDM'sJDM's shareholdersshareholders inin thethe extra-ordinaryextra-ordinary generalgeneral meetingmeeting heldheld onon 2626 March,March, 20082008
hadhad alsoalso resolvedresolved toto raiseraise thethe capitalcapital ofof JDMJDM byby issuingissuing 761,000761,000 sharesshares toto thethe
CompanyCompany atat aa priceprice ofof Rs.30/-Rs.30/- perper shareshare (or(or atat aa priceprice toto bebe approvedapproved byby thethe SECP)SECP)
withoutwithout issueissue ofof rightright sharesshares underunder sectionsection 86(1)86(1) ofof thethe CompaniesCompanies Ordinance,Ordinance, 19841984
againstagainst thethe depositdeposit forfor sharesshares advancedadvanced byby thethe Company.Company. TheThe CompanyCompany hadhad
consentedconsented toto taketake thethe sharesshares atat faceface valuevalue withwith thethe premiumpremium ofof Rs.20/-Rs.20/- perper shareshare
subjectsubject toto approvalapproval ofof SECP.SECP. JDM,JDM, duringduring June,June, 2008,2008, hadhad filedfiled anan applicationapplication withwith
thethe SECPSECP inin thisthis regard.regard. TheThe SECP,SECP, duringduring July,July, 2008,2008, hadhad declineddeclined thethe JDM'sJDM's
request to issue shares to the Company as otherwise than right.request to issue shares to the Company as otherwise than right.

A review application was submitted to the SECP during August, 2008.A review application was submitted to the SECP during August, 2008.

NoNo inventoryinventory waswas inin transittransit asas atat 3030 June,June, 20092009 (inventory(inventory valuingvaluing Rs.1,176Rs.1,176
thousand was in transit as at 30 June, 2008).thousand was in transit as at 30 June, 2008).



40 Bannu Woollen Mills Limited

Annual Report 2009

22.22. STOCK-IN-TRADESTOCK-IN-TRADE 20092009 20082008

NoteNote
Raw materials:Raw materials:

- at warehouse- at warehouse 81,06681,066 35,30335,303

- in transit- in transit 32,19332,193 13,14813,148

113,259113,259 48,45148,451

Work-in-processWork-in-process 14,36914,369 12,52512,525

Finished goodsFinished goods 74,64474,644 79,02379,023

202,272202,272 139,999139,999

23.23. TRADE DEBTSTRADE DEBTS - Unsecured - Considered good - Unsecured - Considered good

24.24. TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTSTRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Margin depositsMargin deposits 00 3,6063,606

PrepaymentsPrepayments 164164 2222

Letters of creditLetters of credit 269269 215215

Security depositsSecurity deposits 2020 120120

453453 3,9633,963

25.25. DUE FROM ASSOCIATED COMPANIES DUE FROM ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 

On account of normal trading transactionsOn account of normal trading transactions

Babri Cotton Mills LimitedBabri Cotton Mills Limited 11 127127

Janana De Malucho Textile Mills LimitedJanana De Malucho Textile Mills Limited 5,9585,958 3,4003,400

5,9595,959 3,5273,527
On account of mark-upOn account of mark-up

Babri Cotton Mills LimitedBabri Cotton Mills Limited 186186 187187

Janana De Malucho Textile Mills LimitedJanana De Malucho Textile Mills Limited 00 1,0901,090

186186 1,2771,277

6,1456,145 4,8044,804

26.26. CASH AND BANK BALANCESCASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash-in-hand Cash-in-hand 289289 153153

Cash at banks on:Cash at banks on:
- current accounts- current accounts 244244 225225
- dividend accounts- dividend accounts 179179 179179

- PLS accounts- PLS accounts 26.126.1 5353 00

476476 404404

765765 557557

26.126.1 These carry profit at the rate of 5% per annum.These carry profit at the rate of 5% per annum.

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

Mark-upMark-up hashas beenbeen chargedcharged onon thethe balancesbalances duedue afterafter normalnormal creditcredit termterm andand gracegrace periodperiod atat
the rates applicable on short term finances as disclosed in note 13.the rates applicable on short term finances as disclosed in note 13.
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27.27. SALES SALES --  NetNet 20092009 20082008

NoteNote

Fabrics and blanketsFabrics and blankets 391,146391,146 332,183332,183

WasteWaste 1,4701,470 942942

392,616392,616 333,125333,125

Less: discountLess: discount 1,3361,336 1,2361,236

391,280391,280 331,889331,889

28.28. COST OF SALESCOST OF SALES

Raw materials consumedRaw materials consumed 28.128.1 160,035160,035 150,862150,862

Salaries, wages and benefits Salaries, wages and benefits 28.228.2 58,38858,388 45,25745,257

Power and fuelPower and fuel 38,30238,302 31,06431,064

Stores consumed Stores consumed 14,46514,465 14,58514,585

Repair and maintenanceRepair and maintenance 10,11210,112 11,09811,098

DepreciationDepreciation 9,8319,831 9,9979,997

InsuranceInsurance 1,3501,350 1,3951,395

Others Others 251251 184184

292,734292,734 264,442264,442
Adjustment of work-in-processAdjustment of work-in-process

OpeningOpening 12,52512,525 16,22216,222

ClosingClosing (14,369)(14,369) (12,525)(12,525)

(1,844)(1,844) 3,6973,697

Cost of goods manufacturedCost of goods manufactured 290,890290,890 268,139268,139

Adjustment of finished goodsAdjustment of finished goods

Opening stockOpening stock 79,02379,023 52,26252,262

Closing stockClosing stock (74,644)(74,644) (79,023)(79,023)

4,3794,379 (26,761)(26,761)

295,269295,269 241,378241,378

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)
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28.128.1 Raw materials consumedRaw materials consumed 20092009 20082008

NoteNote

Purchases Purchases 224,843224,843 158,173158,173

Adjustment of stockAdjustment of stock
- opening- opening 48,45148,451 41,14041,140

- closing- closing (113,259)(113,259) (48,451)(48,451)

(64,808)(64,808) (7,311)(7,311)

160,035160,035 150,862150,862

28.228.2 These include following in respect of gratuity:These include following in respect of gratuity:

- current service cost- current service cost 7,6377,637 1,8261,826

- interest cost- interest cost 1,0461,046 1,1591,159

- actuarial loss recognised- actuarial loss recognised 170170 155155

8,8538,853 3,1403,140

29.29. DISTRIBUTION COSTDISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries and benefits Salaries and benefits 29.129.1 827827 2,0492,049

TravellingTravelling 1515 00

CommissionCommission 14,46514,465 12,19712,197

Outward freightOutward freight 44 1111

Sales promotion / samples Sales promotion / samples 504504 543543

Communication Communication 1515 1414

Vehicles' runningVehicles' running 184184 133133

OthersOthers 3131 1717

16,04516,045 14,96414,964

29.129.1 These include following in respect of gratuity:These include following in respect of gratuity:

- current service cost- current service cost 109109 3939

- interest cost- interest cost 1515 2424

- actuarial loss recognised- actuarial loss recognised 22 33

126126 6666

29.229.2 TheThe CompanyCompany hashas sharedshared expensesexpenses aggregatingaggregating Rs.6.029Rs.6.029 millionmillion (2008:(2008: Rs.5.581Rs.5.581

million)million) onon accountaccount ofof thethe CombinedCombined OfficesOffices withwith itsits AssociatedAssociated Companies.Companies. TheseThese
expenses have been booked in respective heads of account.expenses have been booked in respective heads of account.

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)
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30.30. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSESADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 20092009 20082008
NoteNote

Salaries and benefits Salaries and benefits 30.130.1 20,07320,073 12,81212,812
Travelling Travelling 1,2641,264 1,1111,111
Rent, rates and taxesRent, rates and taxes 1,3011,301 1,0991,099
Entertainment / guest house expensesEntertainment / guest house expenses 416416 335335
CommunicationCommunication 588588 476476
Printing and stationeryPrinting and stationery 425425 422422

ElectricityElectricity 1,3101,310 1,4201,420
InsuranceInsurance 2828 2727
Repair and maintenanceRepair and maintenance 528528 469469
Vehicles' runningVehicles' running 2,0882,088 1,6671,667
AdvertisementAdvertisement 168168 271271
Subscription / papers and periodicalsSubscription / papers and periodicals 192192 253253
DepreciationDepreciation 3,6143,614 3,6923,692

Auditors' remuneration:Auditors' remuneration:

- statutory audit- statutory audit 225225 225225
- half yearly review- half yearly review 100100 6060
- consultancy charges- consultancy charges 8080 6565
- certification charges- certification charges 1010 3030
- out-of-pocket expenses- out-of-pocket expenses 2121 2121

436436 401401

Legal and professional charges (other than Auditors')Legal and professional charges (other than Auditors') 677677 563563

OthersOthers 3636 2929

33,14433,144 25,04725,047

30.130.1 These include following in respect of gratuity:These include following in respect of gratuity:

- current service cost- current service cost 2,2542,254 309309

- interest cost- interest cost 308308 197197

- actuarial loss recognised- actuarial loss recognised 5050 2626

2,6122,612 532532

31.31. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSESOTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Donations Donations 245245 3232

Donation to Waqf-e-Kuli KhanDonation to Waqf-e-Kuli Khan 31.131.1 1,0161,016 1,1361,136

Workers' (profit) participation fundWorkers' (profit) participation fund 2,1832,183 2,4402,440

Workers' welfare fundWorkers' welfare fund 853853 956956

Loss on disposal of operating fixed assets - netLoss on disposal of operating fixed assets - net 00 2121

Balances receivable from employees - written-offBalances receivable from employees - written-off 00 4242

4,2974,297 4,6274,627

31.131.1

- Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak- Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak - Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak- Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak

- Lt. General (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak- Lt. General (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak - Mr. Mushtaq Ahmad Khan, FCA- Mr. Mushtaq Ahmad Khan, FCA

- Mrs. Zeb Gohar Ayub Khan- Mrs. Zeb Gohar Ayub Khan - Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmad- Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmad

- Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak- Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

TheThe amountamount hashas beenbeen donateddonated toto Waqf-e-KuliWaqf-e-Kuli Khan,Khan, (a(a CharitableCharitable Institution)Institution)
administered by the following directors of the Company:administered by the following directors of the Company:
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32.32. OTHER OPERATING INCOMEOTHER OPERATING INCOME 20092009 20082008

Income from financial assetsIncome from financial assets

Mark-up earned on:Mark-up earned on:
- Associated Companies' balances- Associated Companies' balances 204204 619619

- dealers' balances- dealers' balances 705705 1,2451,245

- PLS accounts- PLS accounts 102102 00

- term deposit receipts- term deposit receipts 00 1919

1,0111,011 1,8831,883

Income from other than financial assetsIncome from other than financial assets

Sale of empties / scrap Sale of empties / scrap 1,2331,233 901901

Unclaimed balances / excess provisions written-backUnclaimed balances / excess provisions written-back 22 198198

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets - netGain on disposal of operating fixed assets - net 528528 00

1,7631,763 1,0991,099

2,7742,774 2,9822,982

33.33. FINANCE COSTFINANCE COST

Interest on workers' (profit) participation fundInterest on workers' (profit) participation fund 7878 228228

Mark-up on: Mark-up on: 
- Associated Companies' balances- Associated Companies' balances 9090 4545

- short term finances- short term finances 3,9523,952 2,7462,746

- letters of credit- letters of credit 758758 706706

Lease finance chargesLease finance charges 706706 682682

Bank chargesBank charges 114114 175175

5,6985,698 4,5824,582

34.34. (LOSS) / EARNINGS PER SHARE(LOSS) / EARNINGS PER SHARE

(Loss) / profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders(Loss) / profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders (5,267)(5,267) 27,45827,458

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issueWeighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the yearduring the year 7,605,0007,605,000 7,605,0007,605,000

(Loss) / earnings per share (Loss) / earnings per share (0.69)(0.69) 3.613.61

N u m b e r sN u m b e r s

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

ThereThere isis nono dilutivedilutive effecteffect onon thethe (loss)(loss) // earningsearnings perper shareshare ofof thethe Company,Company, whichwhich isis basedbased
on:on:

RupeesRupees
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35.35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSFINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- credit risk;- credit risk; - liquidity risk; and- liquidity risk; and - market risk.- market risk.

35.135.1 Credit riskCredit risk

20092009 20082008

Security depositsSecurity deposits 276276 266266

Trade debtsTrade debts 50,10650,106 50,78850,788

Due from Associated CompaniesDue from Associated Companies 6,1456,145 4,8044,804

Other receivablesOther receivables 00 9898

Trade depositsTrade deposits 2020 3,7263,726

Bank balancesBank balances 476476 404404

57,02357,023 60,08660,086

Not past dueNot past due 33,94133,941 34,95434,954

Past due 1 - 30 daysPast due 1 - 30 days 5,8715,871 2,8592,859

Past due 30 - 150 daysPast due 30 - 150 days 10,29410,294 12,97512,975

50,10650,106 50,78850,788

TheThe maximummaximum exposureexposure toto creditcredit riskrisk asas atat 3030 June,June, 20092009 alongalong withwith comparativecomparative isis
tabulated below:tabulated below:

Rupees in thousandRupees in thousand

ToTo managemanage exposureexposure toto creditcredit riskrisk inin respectrespect ofof tradetrade debts,debts, managementmanagement performsperforms
creditcredit reviewsreviews takingtaking intointo accountaccount thethe customer'scustomer's financialfinancial position,position, pastpast experienceexperience
andand otherother relevantrelevant factors.factors. WhereWhere consideredconsidered necessary,necessary, advanceadvance paymentspayments areare
obtainedobtained fromfrom certaincertain parties.parties. TheThe managementmanagement hashas setset aa maximummaximum creditcredit periodperiod ofof
120 days to reduce the credit risk.120 days to reduce the credit risk.

All the trade debts at the balance sheet date represent domestic parties.All the trade debts at the balance sheet date represent domestic parties.

The ageing of trade debts at the year-end was as follows:The ageing of trade debts at the year-end was as follows:

ConcentrationConcentration ofof creditcredit riskrisk arisesarises whenwhen aa numbernumber ofof countercounter partiesparties areare engagedengaged inin
similarsimilar businessbusiness activitiesactivities oror havehave similarsimilar economiceconomic featuresfeatures thatthat wouldwould causecause theirtheir
abilitiesabilities toto meetmeet contractualcontractual obligationobligation toto bebe similarlysimilarly effectedeffected byby thethe changeschanges inin
economic,economic, politicalpolitical oror otherother conditions.conditions. TheThe CompanyCompany believesbelieves thatthat itit isis notnot exposedexposed

to major concentration of credit risk.to major concentration of credit risk.

TheThe Company'sCompany's BoardBoard ofof DirectorsDirectors hashas overalloverall responsibilityresponsibility forfor thethe establishmentestablishment andand
oversightoversight ofof CompanysCompanys riskrisk managementmanagement framework.framework. TheThe BoardBoard isis alsoalso responsibleresponsible forfor
developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

CreditCredit riskrisk representsrepresents thethe accountingaccounting lossloss thatthat wouldwould bebe recognisedrecognised atat thethe reportingreporting
datedate ifif countercounter partiesparties failfail completelycompletely toto performperform asas contractedcontracted andand primarilyprimarily arisesarises

fromfrom tradetrade debtsdebts andand duedue fromfrom AssociatedAssociated Companies.Companies. OutOut ofof thethe totaltotal financialfinancial
assetsassets ofof Rs.57,312Rs.57,312 thousandthousand (2008:Rs.60,239(2008:Rs.60,239 thousand),thousand), thethe financialfinancial assetsassets whichwhich
are subject to credit risk aggregated to Rs. 57,023 thousand (2008:Rs.60,086 thousand).are subject to credit risk aggregated to Rs. 57,023 thousand (2008:Rs.60,086 thousand).

InIn respectrespect ofof amountsamounts duedue fromfrom AssociatedAssociated Companies,Companies, duedue toto thethe Company'sCompany's longlong

standingstanding businessbusiness relationshiprelationship withwith them,them, managementmanagement doesdoes notnot expectexpect non-non-
performance by Associated Companies on their obligations to the Company.performance by Associated Companies on their obligations to the Company.

BasedBased onon pastpast experience,experience, thethe Company'sCompany's managementmanagement believesbelieves thatthat nono impairmentimpairment
lossloss allowanceallowance isis necessarynecessary inin respectrespect ofof tradetrade debtsdebts asas debtsdebts aggregatingaggregating Rs.8,634Rs.8,634

thousandthousand havehave beenbeen realisedrealised duringduring July,July, 20092009 andand forfor otherother tradetrade debtsdebts therethere areare
reasonablereasonable groundsgrounds toto believebelieve thatthat thethe amountsamounts willwill bebe realisedrealised inin shortshort coursecourse ofof
time.time.
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35.235.2 Liquidity riskLiquidity risk

35.335.3 Market riskMarket risk

(a) (a) Currency riskCurrency risk

20092009 20082008

Bills payablesBills payables 11,30911,309 8,8428,842

Outstanding letters of creditOutstanding letters of credit 19,57919,579 16,45716,457

Net exposureNet exposure 30,88830,888 25,29925,299

Rupees in thousandRupees in thousand

LiquidityLiquidity riskrisk isis thethe riskrisk thatthat anan entityentity willwill encounterencounter difficultiesdifficulties inin meetingmeeting
obligationsobligations associatedassociated withwith financialfinancial liabilities.liabilities. PrudentPrudent liquidityliquidity riskrisk managementmanagement
impliesimplies maintainingmaintaining sufficientsufficient cashcash andand thethe availabilityavailability ofof fundingfunding throughthrough anan
adequateadequate amountamount ofof committedcommitted creditcredit facilities.facilities. TheThe Company'sCompany's treasurytreasury departmentdepartment
maintainsmaintains flexibilityflexibility inin fundingfunding byby maintainingmaintaining availabilityavailability underunder committedcommitted creditcredit
lines.lines.

FinancialFinancial liabilitiesliabilities inin accordanceaccordance withwith theirtheir contractualcontractual maturitiesmaturities areare presentedpresented
below:below:

TheThe contractualcontractual cashcash flowsflows relatingrelating toto thethe aboveabove financialfinancial liabilitiesliabilities havehave beenbeen
determineddetermined onon thethe basisbasis ofof profitprofit // mark-upmark-up ratesrates effectiveeffective atat thethe respectiverespective year-year-
ends.ends. TheThe ratesrates ofof profitprofit // mark-upmark-up havehave beenbeen discloseddisclosed inin thethe respectiverespective notesnotes toto
these financial statements.these financial statements.

MarketMarket riskrisk isis thethe riskrisk thatthat changeschanges inin marketmarket price,price, suchsuch asas foreignforeign exchangeexchange rates,rates,
interestinterest ratesrates andand equityequity pricesprices willwill effecteffect thethe Company'sCompany's incomeincome oror thethe valuevalue ofof itsits
holdings of financial instruments.holdings of financial instruments.

TheThe CompanyCompany isis exposedexposed toto currencycurrency riskrisk onon importimport ofof rawraw materialsmaterials andand storesstores &&
sparesspares denominateddenominated inin USUS Dollar.Dollar. TheThe Company'sCompany's exposureexposure toto foreignforeign currencycurrency riskrisk
for US Dollar is as follows:for US Dollar is as follows:

Liabilities against assets Liabilities against assets 

subject to finance leasesubject to finance lease 3,3443,344 4,0494,049 2,0442,044 2,0052,005

Short term financesShort term finances 109,414109,414 117,538117,538 117,538117,538 00

Trade and other payablesTrade and other payables 40,99140,991 40,99140,991 40,99140,991 00

153,749153,749 162,578162,578 160,573160,573 2,0052,005

Liabilities against assets Liabilities against assets 

subject to finance leasesubject to finance lease 3,7443,744 4,4064,406 2,2612,261 2,1452,145

Short term financesShort term finances 33,12133,121 35,07835,078 35,07835,078 00

Trade and other payablesTrade and other payables 32,66532,665 32,66532,665 32,66532,665 00

69,53069,530 72,14972,149 70,00470,004 2,1452,145

Carrying Carrying 

amountamount

Contractual Contractual 

cash flowscash flows

Less than    Less than    

1 year1 year

Between 1 Between 1 

to 5 yearsto 5 years

 ---------------------- Rupees in thousand  --------------------- ---------------------- Rupees in thousand  ---------------------

 ---------------------- Rupees in thousand  --------------------- ---------------------- Rupees in thousand  ---------------------

20092009

20082008

Carrying Carrying 

amountamount

Contractual Contractual 

cash flowscash flows

Less than    1 Less than    1 

yearyear

Between 1 to Between 1 to 

5 years5 years
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The following significant exchange rates have been applied:The following significant exchange rates have been applied:

20092009 20082008 20092009 20082008

US $ to RupeeUS $ to Rupee 78.8978.89 62.7762.77 81.3081.30 68.2068.20

Sensitivity analysisSensitivity analysis

20092009 20082008
Effect on (loss) / profit for the year:Effect on (loss) / profit for the year:

US $ to RupeeUS $ to Rupee 1,1311,131 884884

(b)(b) Interest rate riskInterest rate risk

20092009 20082008 20092009 20082008

%% %%
Fixed rate instrumentsFixed rate instruments

Financial assetsFinancial assets

Bank balancesBank balances 55 -- 5353 00

Variable rate instrumentsVariable rate instruments

Financial liabilitiesFinancial liabilities

Liabilities against assets Liabilities against assets 
subject to finance leasesubject to finance lease 15.86 to 21.2015.86 to 21.20 14.00 to 15.8614.00 to 15.86 3,3443,344 3,7443,744

Short term financesShort term finances 11.82 to 16.5211.82 to 16.52 11.47 to 11.8911.47 to 11.89 109,414109,414 33,12133,121

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instrumentsFair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instrumentsCash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

IncreaseIncrease DecreaseDecrease

As at 30 June, 2009As at 30 June, 2009

Cash flow sensitivity-Variable rate financial liabilitiesCash flow sensitivity-Variable rate financial liabilities (47)(47) 4747

As at 30 June, 2008As at 30 June, 2008

Cash flow sensitivity-Variable rate financial liabilitiesCash flow sensitivity-Variable rate financial liabilities (12)(12) 1212

Average rate Average rate Balance sheet date rateBalance sheet date rate

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

TheThe sensitivitysensitivity analysisanalysis preparedprepared isis notnot necessarilynecessarily indicativeindicative ofof thethe effectseffects onon (loss)(loss) //
profit for the year and liabilities of the Company.profit for the year and liabilities of the Company.

AtAt thethe reportingreporting date,date, thethe profitprofit andand mark-upmark-up raterate profileprofile ofof thethe Company'sCompany's
significant financial assets and liabilities is as follows:significant financial assets and liabilities is as follows:

Effective rateEffective rate Carrying amountCarrying amount
(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

TheThe CompanyCompany doesdoes notnot accountaccount forfor anyany fixedfixed raterate financialfinancial assetsassets andand liabilitiesliabilities atat
fairfair valuevalue throughthrough profitprofit andand loss.loss. Therefore,Therefore, aa changechange inin profitprofit andand mark-upmark-up ratesrates atat
the reporting date would not affect profit and loss account.the reporting date would not affect profit and loss account.

AA changechange ofof 100100 basisbasis pointspoints (bp)(bp) inin profitprofit andand mark-upmark-up ratesrates atat thethe balancebalance sheetsheet
datedate wouldwould havehave decreaseddecreased // (increased)(increased) lossloss // (profit)(profit) forfor thethe yearyear byby thethe amountsamounts
shown below. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the year 2008.shown below. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the year 2008.

AtAt thethe reportingreporting date,date, ifif RupeeRupee hadhad strengthenedstrengthened byby 10%10% againstagainst DollarDollar withwith allall otherother
variablesvariables heldheld constant,constant, (loss)(loss) // profitprofit afterafter taxationtaxation forfor thethe yearyear wouldwould havehave beenbeen
higherhigher // lowerlower byby thethe amountamount shownshown belowbelow mainlymainly asas aa resultresult ofof foreignforeign exchangeexchange
loss on translation of financial liabilities.loss on translation of financial liabilities.

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

TheThe weakeningweakening ofof RupeeRupee againstagainst DollarDollar wouldwould havehave hadhad anan equalequal butbut oppositeopposite impactimpact
on the (loss) / profit after taxation.on the (loss) / profit after taxation.

TheThe sensitivitysensitivity analysisanalysis preparedprepared isis notnot necessarilynecessarily indicativeindicative ofof thethe effectseffects onon (loss)(loss) //
profit for the year and liabilities of the Company.profit for the year and liabilities of the Company.
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35.435.4 Fair value of financial instrumentsFair value of financial instruments

36.36. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVESREMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

20092009 20082008 20092009 20082008 20092009

RemunerationRemuneration
(including bonus)(including bonus) 2,0302,030 2,8362,836 4,5844,584 2,5012,501 3,3463,346 774774

Retirement benefitsRetirement benefits
- gratuity- gratuity 319319 134134 1,3471,347 139139 163163 5353

House rentHouse rent 216216 216216 1,2991,299 540540 00 00

InsuranceInsurance 22 1111 22 22 2020 1818

Reimbursement ofReimbursement of
medical and othermedical and other

expensesexpenses 121121 8080 8686 1212 8484 5757

UtilitiesUtilities 144144 144144 331331 274274 00 00

2,8322,832 3,4213,421 7,6497,649 3,4683,468 3,6133,613 902902

Number of personsNumber of persons 11 11 33 33 22 11

36.136.1

36.236.2

36.336.3

37.37. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIESTRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

37.137.1

20092009 20082008

-- purchase of goods and servicespurchase of goods and services 5,9705,970 4,3814,381

-- mark-up earnedmark-up earned 204204 619619

-- mark-up chargedmark-up charged 9090 4545

-- management charges:management charges:

- paid- paid 2,6132,613 2,3212,321

- received- received 832832 286286

-- insurance claim receivedinsurance claim received 136136 1111

ExecutivesExecutivesWorking DirectorsWorking DirectorsChief ExecutiveChief Executive

RemunerationRemuneration ofof oneone ofof thethe workingworking directorsdirectors representsrepresents thethe Company'sCompany's shareshare ofof
remuneration transferred by the Associated Companies.remuneration transferred by the Associated Companies.

InIn additionaddition toto above,above, meetingmeeting feesfees ofof Rs.193Rs.193 thousandthousand (2008:(2008: Rs.96Rs.96 thousand)thousand) werewere

also paid to seven (2008: seven) non-working directors.also paid to seven (2008: seven) non-working directors.

ParticularsParticulars

RelatedRelated partiesparties comprisecomprise ofof AssociatedAssociated Companies,Companies, directorsdirectors andand executives.executives. TheThe
CompanyCompany inin thethe normalnormal coursecourse ofof businessbusiness carries-outcarries-out transactionstransactions withwith variousvarious
relatedrelated parties.parties. AmountsAmounts duedue fromfrom andand toto relatedrelated partiesparties areare shownshown underunder
receivablesreceivables andand payables.payables. RemunerationRemuneration ofof chiefchief executive,executive, directorsdirectors andand executivesexecutives
areare discloseddisclosed inin notenote 36.36. AggregateAggregate transactionstransactions withwith AssociatedAssociated CompaniesCompanies
during the year were as follows:during the year were as follows:

-------------------------- Rupees in thousand ----------------------------------------------------- Rupees in thousand ---------------------------

CarryingCarrying valuesvalues ofof thethe financialfinancial assetsassets andand financialfinancial liabilitiesliabilities approximateapproximate theirtheir fairfair
values.values. FairFair valuevalue isis thethe amountamount forfor whichwhich anan assetasset couldcould bebe exchangedexchanged oror aa liabilityliability

settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arms length transaction.settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arms length transaction.

20082008

(Rupees in thousand)(Rupees in thousand)

TheThe chiefchief executive,executive, workingworking directorsdirectors andand executivesexecutives havehave beenbeen providedprovided withwith freefree
useuse ofof thethe CompanyCompany maintainedmaintained carscars andand accommodation.accommodation. TheThe chiefchief executiveexecutive andand
working directors have also been provided with free use of residential telephone.working directors have also been provided with free use of residential telephone.
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37.237.2

37.337.3

38.38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENTCAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

20092009 20082008

Total borrowingsTotal borrowings 112,758112,758 36,86536,865

Less: Cash and bank balances Less: Cash and bank balances 765765 557557

Net debtNet debt 111,993111,993 36,30836,308

Total equityTotal equity 312,510312,510 313,718313,718

Total capitalTotal capital 424,503424,503 350,026350,026

Gearing ratioGearing ratio 26%26% 10%10%

39.39. CAPACITY AND PRODUCTIONCAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 20092009 20082008

YarnYarn

Number of spindles installed Number of spindles installed 3,3463,346 2,8982,898

Number of spindles/shifts workedNumber of spindles/shifts worked 2,081,9502,081,950 2,180,2502,180,250

Installed capacity at 5 Nm count (Kgs.)Installed capacity at 5 Nm count (Kgs.) 1,610,2801,610,280 1,595,0991,595,099

Actual production converted into 5 Nm count (Kgs.)Actual production converted into 5 Nm count (Kgs.) 1,281,7331,281,733 1,378,8951,378,895

Number of shifts worked Number of shifts worked 913913 946946

ClothCloth

Number of looms installedNumber of looms installed 4646 4646

Number of looms/shifts workedNumber of looms/shifts worked 31,00131,001 34,58034,580

Installed capacity of 46 (2008: 46)Installed capacity of 46 (2008: 46)
operational looms at 30 picks (Meters) (single shift)operational looms at 30 picks (Meters) (single shift) 1,634,7981,634,798 1,634,7981,634,798

Actual production converted into 30 picks (Meters) (03 shifts)Actual production converted into 30 picks (Meters) (03 shifts) 1,521,6671,521,667 1,797,1351,797,135

Number of shifts workedNumber of shifts worked 861861 951951

Rupees in thousandRupees in thousand

InIn orderorder toto maintainmaintain oror adjustadjust thethe capitalcapital structure,structure, thethe CompanyCompany maymay adjustadjust thethe amountamount ofof
dividends paid to the ordinary shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.dividends paid to the ordinary shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

ForFor thethe purposepurpose ofof calculatingcalculating thethe gearinggearing ratio,ratio, thethe amountamount ofof totaltotal borrowingsborrowings hashas beenbeen
determineddetermined byby includingincluding thethe effecteffect ofof liabilitiesliabilities againstagainst assetsassets subjectsubject toto financefinance leaselease andand
short term finances under mark-up arrangements.short term finances under mark-up arrangements.

TheThe Company'sCompany's primeprime objectiveobjective whenwhen managingmanaging capitalcapital isis toto safeguardsafeguard itsits abilityability toto continuecontinue
asas aa goinggoing concernconcern inin orderorder toto provideprovide adequateadequate returnsreturns forfor shareholders,shareholders, benefitsbenefits forfor otherother
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

ConsistentConsistent withwith othersothers inin thethe industry,industry, thethe CompanyCompany monitorsmonitors capitalcapital onon thethe basisbasis ofof
gearinggearing ratio.ratio. ThisThis ratioratio isis calculatedcalculated asas netnet debtdebt divideddivided byby totaltotal capital.capital. NetNet debtdebt isis
calculatedcalculated asas totaltotal borrowingsborrowings lessless cashcash andand bankbank balances.balances. TotalTotal capitalcapital isis calculatedcalculated asas
equity as shown in the balance sheet plus net debt.equity as shown in the balance sheet plus net debt.

Mark-upMark-up hashas beenbeen earnedearned andand chargedcharged atat thethe ratesrates rangingranging fromfrom 14.77%14.77% toto 17.52%17.52%
(2008:(2008: 11.47%11.47% toto 11.89%)11.89%) andand 11.82%11.82% toto 16.52%16.52% (2008:(2008: 11.42%11.42% toto 12.02%)12.02%) perper
annumannum respectivelyrespectively calculatedcalculated onon dailydaily productproduct basisbasis onon thethe currentcurrent accountaccount
balancesbalances ofof thethe AssociatedAssociated CompaniesCompanies exceptexcept forfor thethe balancesbalances ofof TheThe UniversalUniversal
InsuranceInsurance CompanyCompany LimitedLimited asas thesethese balancesbalances havehave arisenarisen onon accountaccount ofof insuranceinsurance
premium payable.premium payable.

TheThe Company'sCompany's shareholders,shareholders, videvide aa specialspecial resolution,resolution, havehave authorisedauthorised thethe chiefchief
executiveexecutive toto advanceadvance loansloans uptoupto Rs.5.0Rs.5.0 millionmillion toto anyany ofof thethe CompanysCompanys associatesassociates toto
meetmeet thethe businessbusiness transactionstransactions involvinginvolving paymentpayment // reimbursementreimbursement ofof branchbranch officeoffice
/ other expenses incurred on the Company's behalf./ other expenses incurred on the Company's behalf.



Annual Report 2009

50 Bannu Woollen Mills Limited

40.40. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUEDATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

41.41. FIGURESFIGURES

FiguresFigures inin thethe financialfinancial statementsstatements havehave beenbeen rounded-offrounded-off toto thethe nearestnearest thousandthousand RupeesRupees

except stated otherwise.except stated otherwise.

CorrespondingCorresponding figures,figures, exceptexcept thatthat commissioncommission onon salessales whichwhich waswas netted-offnetted-off againstagainst salessales

duringduring thethe precedingpreceding yearyear hashas beenbeen groupedgrouped underunder thethe headhead ofof distributiondistribution costcost inin thesethese

financial statements, have neither been rearranged nor reclassified.financial statements, have neither been rearranged nor reclassified.

TheseThese financialfinancial statementsstatements werewere authorisedauthorised forfor issueissue on 08on 08 October,October, 20092009 byby thethe boardboard ofof

directors of the Company.directors of the Company.

ItIt isis difficultdifficult toto describedescribe preciselyprecisely thethe productionproduction capacitycapacity inin spinningspinning // weavingweaving millsmills sincesince

itit fluctuatesfluctuates widelywidely dependingdepending onon variousvarious factorsfactors suchsuch asas countcount ofof yarnyarn spun,spun, spindles'spindles'

speed, twist per inch, the width and construction of cloth woven, etc. It also varies according speed, twist per inch, the width and construction of cloth woven, etc. It also varies according 

to the pattern of production adopted in a particular year.to the pattern of production adopted in a particular year.

Lt. Gen (Retd) 
Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
         Director

Muhammad Azhar Khan
Chief Executive



BANNU WOOLLEN MILLS LIMITED

FORM OF PROXY

I/We _______________________________________________________________________________ of 
__________________________ being in the district of __________________________ being a 
member of Bannu Woollen Mills Limited and holder of  ______________________________ 
Ordinary Shares as per the Share Register Folio No. ________________ and /or CDC 
Participant I.D. No. _____________________ and Sub-Account No. _____________________ 
hereby appoint ______________________ of ______________________ or failing him/her 
______________________________ as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at 

ththe 49  Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Registered Office, Habibabad, 
Kohat on 31st October 2009 at 10:45 A.M and at any adjournment thereof.

Witnesses:
1. As witness my hand this …………… day of …………… 2009.

Signed by the said member in the presence of _____________

2. As witness my hand this …………… day of …………… 2009.

Signed by the said member in the presence of _____________

Signatures of member

Please fill in the applicable columns:

Note:
A member entitle to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint a proxy in writing to 
attend the meeting and vote on the member's behalf. A Proxy needs not to be a 
member of Company.
If a member is unable to attend the meeting, he may complete and sign this form and 
send it the Company Secretary, Bannu Woollen Mills Limited C/O Janana De 
Malucho Textile Mills Limited, Habibabad, Kohat so as to reach not less than 48 
hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting.

FOR CDC ACCOUNT HOLDERS/CORPORATE ENTITIES:
In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met.

1. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and 
CNIC No. shall be stated on the forms.

2. Attested copies of CNICs or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy 
shall be provided with the proxy form.

3. The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the 
meeting.

4. in case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution/power of attorney 
with attested specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been 
provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

For Physical shares For CDC Account Holders 
Folio No. CDC Participant I.D. 

No. 
Sub Account No. 

Shares 
Held 

 
 

   

 

Please
affix five rupees
revenue stamp


	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52

